HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Regd. Office: Nehru House, (3" Floor), 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Dethi-110002
Tel.: 0111-66001112 Fax: 011-23353708
CIN: Ug71200L2004PTC126956 £ Mail ID: dswain@ikmail.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 20" (Twentieth) Annual General Meeting of the
Members of Hari Shankar Singhania Holdings Private Limited will be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at Nehru House, 3% Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar
Marg, New Delhi-110002, on Friday, the 27" day of September, 2024 at 11.30 AM. to
transact the following business:

As Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including
audited Consolidated Financial Statements) of the Company for the financial year
ended 315 March, 2024 and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon,

2. To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

‘RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’} and the Rules made
thereunder and on the basis of recommendation of the Board of Directors of the
Company, M/s Lodha & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants., New Delhi,
(Firm Registration No. 301051E/E300284) who have offered themselves for
appointment and have confirmed their eligibility to be appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company in terms of Section 141 of the Act, be and are hereby
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive
years commencing from the conclusion of the 20 Annual General Meeting (AGM)
tifl the conclusion of the 25" AGM on a remuneration of Rs. 1,25,000/- (Rupees
One Lacs Twenty Five Thousands only) for the first year, excluding Goods and
Service Tax, as applicable and reimbursement of travelfing and other out-of-
pocket expenses actually incurred by the said Auditors in connection with the

audit”
By the order of the Board
W
(Divya Baghel)
Company Secretary
Regd. Office:

Nehru House, 3" Floor,
4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,
New Delhi - 110 002

3 September, 2024



NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING 1§
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND ON A POLL TO VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED
AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48
HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT
EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE
THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY,
A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY
AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER
PERSON OR SHAREHQLDER.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are
open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all
working days during business hours up fo the date of the Meeting.

Appointment of Mfs. Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditor of
the Company (ltem No. 2)

M/s. Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of 15th
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 20th Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended the re-appointment of M/s.
Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
period of 5 years commengcing from the conclusion of 20th Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of 25th Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Requisite Resolution regarding their appointment is included in
the Notice of ensuing Annual General Meeting for approval by the Members.



-HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: Nehru House, (3" Floor), 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
Tel.: 011-66001112 Fax: 011-23353708
CIN: UB7120DL2004PTC126956 £ Mail ID: dswain@ikmail.com
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rulc 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

20" Annual General Meeting ~ 27 September, 2024

[‘Name of the member(s) :

chlstcmd addroess :

Email Id :

Folio No/ DP ID-Client 1D No.

I/We, being the member(s) of........o.......... Shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint
LoName .o Bem@ild e e

AdAIEss ©.ooi e STEDATULC. oo, or failing him/her
ZNEmMe : oo B W
AdAress 1o, SIRRAMUFE. e ,.or failing him/her
3oName ;e Bemail T

AIess @ SIENALUIE. e ,-or failing him/her

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote {on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 20" Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, 27 September, 2024 at Nehru Ilouse, 3%
Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002 at 11.30 A.M. and at any adjournment
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

B T Vote

Resolution
Number

Subject matter of Resolution Optional*

For Aé“ahmt

To receive, consider and adopt the audited fin
statements (including audited consolidated financial
1. statements) of the Company for the financial year
ended 31" March, 2024, and the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To ré—appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration




Signed this........o.oooeienn dayof........oeeeennes 2024.

Affix
Revenue

signature of shareholder(s) ... Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ........cooovveviiiiiein,

NQTES:

1. This form of proxy in order (o be effective should be duly stamped, signed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not. less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Annual General Meeting.

2, It 13 optional o indicate your preference. If you leave the “For”, and “Against” column
blank against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to votc in the manner as
he/she may deem appropriate.

3. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 20
Arnual General Meeting.

4. In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the
joint holders should be stated.



| HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Regd. Office: Nehru House, (3™ Floor), 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
Tel.: 011-66001112 Fax: 011-23353708
CIN: U67120DL2004PTC126956 E Mail ID: dswain@ikmail.com

LADMIS$ION SLIP

Folio No. #

No. of Shares held

thereby record my presence at the 20th Annual General Meeting of the Company being held at Nehry
House, 3rd Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002 on 27 day of September, 2024 at
11.30 AM.

Name of the Member (in block letters)

Narme of Proxy /Authorised Representative
attending” (in block letters)

Signature of the attending Member/Proxy/Autharised Representative

Note: 1. A member/proxy/authorised representative wishing to attend
the meeting must complete this Admission $lip before coming to
Meeting and hand it over at the entrance.

2. If you intend to appoint a Proxy, please complete, stamp,
sigh and deposit the Proxy Form at the Company's Registered
Office at least 48 hours before the meeting.



- Route map to the venue of the AGM

Nehru House, 3™ Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
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Hari Shankar Singhania Holdings Private Limited

Directors’ Report
And Management Discussion & Analysis

TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 20t Apnual Report and Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2024,

CORE INVESTMENT COMPANY

The Company is a Core Investment Company-Non-Deposit Taking-Systemically
Important (CIC-ND-S!} registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RB1) and has been
complying with all the conditions prescribed by RBI.

OPERATIONS & OUTLOOK

fndia, the fifth largest economy in lhe world, sustained its growth journey with GDP
rising 7.5%. Consistent high GST collection and a double digit growth in direct taxes
is feading to Economic buoyancy. Overall, the country is expected fo be one of the
fastest growing economies in the world, in the years ahead. However, across the
globe economic growth was affected due to geopolitical uncertainties as well as high
debt servicing cost in the less developed countries.

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, total Revenue from Operations was
Rs. 20.57 Crore and Profit after tax was Rs. 13.78 Crore.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return referred to in Section 134 {3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
available on the website of the Company at the link hitps:/fhssholdings.co.infannual-
refurn/

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Five Board Meetings were held on 12th April, 2023, 10th May, 2023, 27th June, 2023,
15t September, 2023 and 21st December, 2023 during the financial year ended on
3120 March, 2024. Shri Bharat Hari Singhania, Dr. Raghupati Singhania, and Smt.
Vinita Singhania has attended all the five Board Meetings held during the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2024. Shri Ashok Kumar Kinra has attended four Board
Meetings held during the year.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year under review there were no contracts or arrangements
entered into with the related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,



PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investmenis under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 NiL.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial stalements and no material reportable weaknesses was observed in the
system.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the financial year ended 31st March 2024, there was no change in the Board of
Directors of the Company. Further, the Company was not required to appoint any Key
Managerial Personnel during the year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

fn terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the requirement of
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made thereunder is not applicable to the Company during the
financial year.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in
accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards. The Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements together with Auditors’ Report form part of the Annual Report,

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the associates, included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements is presented in a separate seclion in this
Annual Reporl. Please refer AOC-1 annexed to the Financial Statements in the
Annual Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the financial
statements of the Company, Consolidated audited Financial Statements alongwith
relevant documents and separate audiled accounts in respect of associates, are
available on the website of the Company.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review no Company has
become or ceased to be the associate of the Company.

DEPQSITS

The Company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company and does not accept
public deposits and as required by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), the Board of
Directors have also passed necessary resolution not to accept public deposits during
the tinancial year 2024-25, without prior approval of RBI.

DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2023-24 on

equity shares,
b



STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

M/s. Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants were appeinted as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of 15% Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of 20t Annyal General Meeting. Accordingly, the
term of M/s. Lodha & Co., as Statulory Auditor of the Company will expire at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended the re-appointment of M/s.
Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Statulory Auditors of the Company for a
period of § years commencing from the conclusion of 20th Annual General Meeting till
the conciusion of 25" Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Requisite Resolution regarding their appointment is included in
the Natice of ensuing Annual General Meeting for approval by the Members.

The observations of M/s. Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors in
their Report on Accounts and financial statements, read with relevant notes are  self-
explanatory.

COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company. '

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

Requirement of constitution of internal complainis committee under the sexual
harassment of women at workpiace (Preventicn Prohibition & Redressal} Act, 2013 is
not applicable fo the company.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has an elaborate risk management system to inform Board Members
about risk assessment and minimization procedures.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

During the financial year under review, there were no significant and malerial orders
passed by the Regulators or Coutts or Tribunals which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financia
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of
the Company and the date of this Report.

b



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company re-affirms its commitment to the highest standards of corporate
governance practices. Pursyant to guidelines of Reserve Bank of India, a
Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report are made a part
of this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY ETC.

The details as required under Section 134(3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo are not applicable to
the Company.

RISK AND CONCERNS

The Company is mainly exposed to capital market risks in the form of change in value
of its investments. The Company is also exposed to the fluctuations of economy and
industry cycles.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements made in the Directors’ and Management Discussion and Analysis
Report, describes the Company’s outlook, projections, estimates, expectations, which
may be "Forward-fooking Statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws
and regulations. Actual resuits could differ materially from those expressed or
implied.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the financial year under review, there was no change in the nature of
business.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards for Board and General Meetings.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134(3){c} of the Companies Act 2013, your Direclors state
that:-

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

b. the accounting policies have been selecied and applied consistently and
judgments and estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

3



. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

€. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
have been devised and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continuous support
and co-operation extended by various stakeholders of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

t’b‘l V“’h h {

Place: New Delhi (Dr. Raghupati Singhania) (Bharat Hari Singhania)
Date: 3rd September, 2024 Director Director
DIN:- 00036129 DIN:- 00041158
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With a view to avoid duplication between the Directors’ Report and Management
Discussion and Analysis, a Combined Report has been presented.



HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1. COMPANY’'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is an integral part of values, ethics and the best business practices
followed by the Company. The core values of the Company are:

commitment to excellence and customer satisfaction
maximizing long term shareholders' value

socially valued enterprise, and

caring for people and environment.

In a nutshell, the philosophy can be described as observing business practices with the
uitimate aim of enhancing long term shareholders' value and commitment to high standards of
business ethics,

2, BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors consists of Four Non-executive Directors (NED) as on 31% March,
2024, Five Board Meetings were held during the twelve months period from 1% April, 2023 to 31%
March, 2024 ie., on 12% April, 2023, 10" May, 2023, 27" June, 2023, 1 September, 2023, 21%
December, 2023, Attendance and other details as on 31 March, 2024 are as given below:-

Sl Namc» of the Director Catagory “ No. of Board| Whether No. cfmhmDiMGmmhlps and

No. Meetings | last AGM Committee Memberships/Chairmanships

@ aftended | Aftended held in other comparies

(29.08.23) | Directorships® | Committea Committee
Membership " | Chairmanship

|1 | Shei Bharat Flari Singhania # | NED 5 Yes 4 1 .

2 | Dr. Raghupati Singharia NED 5 ' Yes 7 3 1

3 S, Vinita Singhania | NED L Yes 5 -

4| Shii AK. Kinra | Nep 4 Yes 5 2 1

@
$

*

DIN of the above named Direclors in setistim; 1. IN: 00041156, 2. DIN:; 00036129, 3. DIN: 00042983, and 4, DIN: 00068421,
Excluding private limited companies, cornpanies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and forelgn companies.

Only covers Memberships/Chairmanships of Audit Comimittee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Commitiee.

# Ceased to be Director of JK Lakshmi Cement Ltd. & JK Paper Ltd. w.e.f. 1st April, 2024.

Relationship between the Directors infer-se: Shri Bharat Hari Singhania and Dr. Raghupati
Singhania are brothers. Smt. Vinita Singhania is the wife of Late Shri Shripati Singhania, brother
of Shri Bharat Hari Singhania and Dr. Raghupati Singhania.

The number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each (i.e. shares) held by the Non-Executive
Directors as on 31 March, 2024 are: Shri Bharat Hari Singhania — 39,67,632 shares,
Dr. Raghupati Singhania — 46,700,834 (includes 11,68,434 shares as Karta of Raghupati Singhania
HUF), Smt. Vinita Singhania — 35,02,500 shares and Shri A K. Kinra-NIL. During the financial
year, no sitting fees and Commission were paid to the Directors.



3. AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company being a Private Limited Company, the requirement for constitution of Audit
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee is not applicable to the Company.

4. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The requirerhent of constitution of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is not applicable to
the Company, since the Company is having less than 1000 Shareholders.

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE {CSR)
The Company has a CSR Committee comprising of three Non-Executive Directors namely,

Dr. Raghupati Singhania, Chairman, Smt. Vinita Singhania, Member and Shri Ashok Kumar Kinra,
Member.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

In Compliance with the Reserve Bank of India Guidelines, the Company has constituted a
Risk Management Committee Comprise of Three members namely Shri Bharat Hari Singhania, Non-
Executive Director, Chairman, Shri Ashok Kumar Kinra, Non-Executive Director, Member and Shri
U.K. Gupta, Principal Officer, Member.

Dates of the meetings and the number of Members attended are:

Dates of meetmgs; Number of members atter‘lded
24" August, 2023 3
14" March, 2024 3

The names of the Members of the Committee and their attendance at the Meetings:

e NBITIE Status No. of Meetings attended
_Shri Bharat Hari Singhania Chairman | .2
Shri Ashok KumarKinra | Member 2
ShriUK Gupta Member 2

7. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) 5STRATEGY COMMITTEE

tn Compliance with the Master Direction — Information Technology Framework issued by
RBI, the Company has constituted a IT Strategy Committee Comprise of Three members namely,
Shri Ashok Kumar Kinra, Non-Executive Director, Chairman, Shri UK. Gupta, Principal Officer,
Member and Shri Subhendu Kesh, IT person, Member.

Dates of the meetings and the number of Members attended are:

‘Dates of meetings [ Number of members attended _.
12" June, 2023 3
26" October, 2023 3

The names of the Members of the Committee and their attendance at the Meetings:

Name Status No. of Meatings attended
Shri Ashok Kumar Kinra Chairman e
Shri U.K. Gupta oid . Member 2
1 whri Subhendy Kesh Member 2
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ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

In Compliance with the Reserve Bank of India Guidelines, the Company has
constituted a Asset Liability Management Committee comprise of three Non-Executive
Shri Ashok Kumar Kinra, Chairman, Shri Bharat
Hari Singhania, Member, Dr. Raghupati Singhania, Member.

Directors namely

Dates of meet:nL
T September, 2023

3

__Number of members attended

145 March, 2024

The names of the Members of the Committee and their attendance at the Meetings:

_Name . Status No. of Meetings attended
Shn Ashok Kumar | Kmra Chairman 2.
" Shri Bharat Hari Member 2
Singhania
Dr. Raghupati Singhania Member 2

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Location and time for the last three Annuat General Meetings (AGMs) of the Company were:

Year Locatmn Date _Time
2020- | Nehru House, 39 Fioor, 4, Bahadur Shah 130.09.2021 11.00 A M.

21 | Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002 .
2021- | Nehry House, 3 Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah 30.090.2022 11.00 AM.
22 | Zafar Marg, New Dethi-110002 .
2022- | Nehru House, 3% Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah 29.09.2023 11.00 AM.
23 | Zafar Marg, New Delhi- 410002, | |

Details of the Special Resolution passed in last three AGMs:- NIL

None of the business proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annuat General Meeting requires to
be passed through Postal Ballot.

B.

10.

An Extracordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held on 12" April, 2023 at 11.30 AM. for
Reclassification of Authorised Share Capital and Consequent Alteration of Memorandum of

Association.

DISCLOSURES

{i) Related Party Transactions: Disclosures on materially significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at

large: None.

Suitable disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS-24) on
Related Party Transactions have been made in the Annual Report.

All the Related Party Transactions are dealt with in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.




11.

12.

13.

(1i) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed
on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any Statutory Authority, on any
matter related to capital market, during the last three years:

There were no cases of non-compliance of any matter related to capital markets
during the last three years.

(iv})  Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace: Not Applicable

(v) Loans and advances in the nature of Loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested: NiL

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION
Details of 20" AGM along with other details are given below:-
(i) Corporate ldentity Number: U67120DL2004PTC 126956

(ii) Registered Office: Nehru House, 3rd Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New
Deihi-110002 .

(iii) Annual General Meeting (AGM): Financial Year ended 31% March, 2024

(a) Date, Time and venue . Friday, 27" September, 2024 at 11:30 AM., and
Nehru House, 3rd Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar
Marg, New Delhi-110002 .

{t) A brief resume and other particulars of Director(s) seeking appointment or re-
appointment at the aforesaid AGM are given in the Notes to the Notice
convening the said AGM.

(iv)  Address for correspondence Nehru House, 3rd Floor, 4, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg,
New Dethi-110002 .
Details of non-compliance with requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
During the year under review, there were no instances where the Company has failed to
comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, including with respect to
compliance with applicable Accounting and Secretarial Standards.

Details of Penalties and Strictures

No penalties or strictures were imposed on the Company during the year under review by
the Reserve Bank of India or any other statutory authority
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORY

To the Members of Harl Shankar Singhania Holdings Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Standalone Finangial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Hari Shankar Singhania Holdings Private
Limited ("the Gompany”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
stutements, Including a summary of the Significant accounting polivies and other explanatory
information {hereln aftor referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial staternents give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the aceounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March, 2024, its
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that dale.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (8As) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
Attention is drawn to

- As per the Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (as amended time to time), a NBFCU is
required to transfer @ 20% of its net profit of the year to RBI Fund every year. The Company had
transferred Rs. 284.81 lakhs, being balance available in P&L at year end in FY 2021-22, to RB! Reserve
Fund after transfer of Rs. 9,000 lakhs to Capital Redemption Reserve for redemption of preference
shares in the year 2021-22 hence there was shortfall of Rs. 1,139.94 lakhs (and in the financial year
2022-23, the Company had transferred additional Rs. 183.98 lakhs to meet above shortfall). The
balance being net shortfall of Rs, 955.96 lakhs as stated in note no 24(b} have been transferred to the
RBI Reserve Fund out of profit for the financial year 2023-24.

Our Opinien is not modified in respect of above malter.

Red. Office - 19, Esplarjadne Mansions, 14 Government Place East, Kolkata 700069, West Bengal; india,
I.x,sd_ha &_ Co (Reglstration No. 3010515} a Partnership Flen was converted into [odha & Co LIP
{Registration No. 30105 1E/E300284) a Limited Labilicy Fartnership with cllect from December 27, 20093

Kolkata Mumbal New Delhi Chenrai Hyderabard Jaipur



Information Other than the Financiai Statements and Auditor's Report tThereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information incduded in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this Auditor's Report. Our opinion on the standalone financial
statements does not cover the gther information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our- responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or aur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated, '

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with goverpance.

Management Responstbility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financiul slatemnants that give a true and fair vigw
of the state of affairs, financial performance and cash flows of the Compmy in accordance with the
actounting principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards {A3) specified
under Section 143 of the Act read witl Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. Thig
responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for sofeguarding of the asscts of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prodent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements thal give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

I preparing the standalone financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going

concern and using the going concern basiy of accounting unless management either intends to
- liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those Buard of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Respunstbilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone {inancial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an
auditor's repart that inclucles onr opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. M isstatements can arige from fraud or error and are considered material
i, individually or in the apgregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risis,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one




resulting from error,. as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional orissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control,

+ Obtain an undersianding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management, ,.

+ Conclude on the apprapriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether » material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures jn the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence ohtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statepients,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and cvents fn a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
agpregate, makes it probuble that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
finzncial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to evaluate

the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deflciencies in
internal contrel that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where upplicable, related suleguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extentapplicable,

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained zll the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account s required by law have been kept by the Company o far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the hooks of account,




d)

&)

g)

h}

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31+ March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separatc Report in
"Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial statements.

With respect 10 the other matters to be included in the Anditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be jucluded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company did not had any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

il. The Company did not had any long term contracts involving derivative contracts for which

jii.

there were any material foresesable losses,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education am
Protection Fund by the Company.,

iv.  (a) The management has represented (as stated in note 21 of standalone financial statement)

that, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

(b} The management has represented (as stated in note 21 of standalone financial statement)
that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity{ies),
including foreign entity(ies) (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficlaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the




vi.

representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Preference dividend paid by the Company during the year {for the year 2023-24) to
Preference Sharcholders is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination which included test checks and written representations received
from the management, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its
baoks of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the sald software.
Further, during the course of our andit we did not come across any instance of audit ail
featurc being tampered with

As proviso 1o Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 s applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trafl as per the statutory requirements for record retention is nol
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For L.ODHA & CO LLY
Chartered Accounttants
Firm's Registration No.30105 1E/E300284

et

MK LODHA

{Partner)

Membership No. 085155
Place: New Delhi

Rate: 19 June, 2024
UDIN: 224 0BV ICSRKEMHPLIL L0

WA



Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Annexure "A” referred to in paragraph 1 vnder the heading "Report on other legal and
regulatory” of our report of even date on the Standalone Financial statements of Harl Shankar
Singhania Holdings Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024.

1. (a} The Company has maintained proper recards showing full particulars, including quantit;itive
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(k) The Company does not have any intangible assots

() The Company has a regulur programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which Property, Plant and Equipment assets are verified in phased mannper, In
accordance with this programme, Property, Plant and Eguipment were verified during the year
and no materia) discrepanciss were noticed on such verilication, o our opinion, this perisdicily
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its
assets,

{d) The Company does not have any immovable propertics and hence reporting under clause
3(1){¢) of the Order is not applicable.

(e} The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment during the year.

{f} According 1o the information and explanations given to us and records provided, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company #5 at
March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly Benami Transactions (thahiiiun) Act,
1988} and Rules made thereunder.

2. (a)The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, we are not offering any comments
under Clause 3{ii){a) of the Order.

(b}The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits during the year, from
hanks or finaneial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, we are nﬂt
offering any comments under Clause 3(i)(b) of the Order. .

3. (a) As Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
{LLP3) or any other parties during the year. However, the Company has made investments
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(a), 3{c). 3(d), 2{e), and 3(ii}{D of
the Qrder is not applicable to the Company
(b) As per the records and the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, The Company has not provided any guaranteée or
given any security during the year. The investments made are not, prima facle, prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

4. According to the Information and explanations given to us, on the basis of examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186
of Act, with respect of loans, investments, puarantees or gecuvity made to which the provisions
of Section 185 and 186 of the Act applies.

5. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Cornpany has
not accepted deposits from public within the provision of section 73 to 76 of the Act or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under {to the extent applicable).
Therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. We




(b)

have been informed that no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribuna! or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or other Tribunal in this regard.

In our ¢pinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company is not
required to maintain cost records pursuant to section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanatons given to us and on the basis of our examination

of our records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including income tax, goods and service tax, sales lax, service tax, duty of.
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other materlal statutory dues with the

appropriate authorities, As per the information and explanations provided to us provident fund

and employees state insurance are not applicable to the Company and there are no undisputed

statutory dues payable for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable

as at 31+ March, 2024. ‘
According to the records and information & cxplanations given to us, there are no disputed dues
which have remained unpaid as on March 31, 2024 on account of statutory dues referred to in
sub-clause (a) above.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). ‘

9. (3) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in

repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared

wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any government authority.

{c} Accarding to the information and explanations given to us The Company did not have any term

loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to report on lavse 3{ix){c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company

(d}On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, Funds raised on short-

term basis have, prima facie, not been utitised during the year (or long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e} According ta the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the

financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not tiken any funds from
any entity or persen on account of or to meet the obligations of its agsociates as defined under
the Act. The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024,

{f} The Company has not raised loan during the year on the basis of pledge of securities held in its

10.

associate and hence, reporting under clause 3{ix) {f) of the Order are not applicable. The
company did not have any subsidiary or joint venture during the year.

{1} The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year
(read with note no 2 (g)). Hence reporting under clause {x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

)



11, (a) Based on the audit procedure performed and on the basis of information and explanations

12,

13.

14,

16.

17.

i8.

19.

provided by the management to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
notived or reparted during the conrse of the audit.

() No report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{¢} No whistle blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year {and upto
the date of this report). Hence, reporting under clause 3{xi} (c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of tlause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Moreover, as per the
information and explanations and records made available by the management of the Company
and audit procedure performed, for transactions with the related parties during the year, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 128 of the Act, where applicable, As
explained aml as per records, details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as per the applicable Accounting Standards.

Internal audit is not applicable on the Company. Accordingly, we are not offering any comments
under clause 3(xiv){a) and (b} of the Order. However, the company conducts internal audit
pursuant to the specific requirement by RBL

Ou the basis of records made available Lo us and according to information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with the directors or
persons connectet with him. Accordingly, we are not offering comment with respect to
compliance of Section 192 of the Act.

{&) The Company is registered under scction 45-1A of the Reserve Banle of India Act, 1934,

{b} The Company has valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from Reserve Bank of India as per
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence, clause 3(xvi){h) is not applicable.

(¢) The Company is a registered Core Thvestment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. The Company continues to fulfil the criteria of registered CIC
during the year.

()} There is core investment company {CIC) within the Group apart from the Company itself
(€IC as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

The Company has not incurred cash logses during the financial year covered by our sudit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the hasis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial Habilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and hased on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing hag come tv our attention,

¢



20.

21

which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of rmeeting ity liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee aor any assurance that all liab{litics falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnaver of
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 133 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under dause 3Gaz) & (bof
the Order is not applicable for the year.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in
this report. .

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No, 301051E/E300284

N,
{Partner)
Membership No.: 085155
Place: New Delhi

Date: 19% June, 2024

DHA




ANNEXURE “B" T0 THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of ouy report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels Over Financlal Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Harl Shankar Singhania
Frivate Limited ("the Company”) as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone finuncial stateiments of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directars of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
finanecial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established hy the Company congidering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Fipancial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were aperating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financlal controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note requlre that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adeguate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to ebtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system: with reference to financial statements and their operating
offectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or errar. ‘

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial $tatements

A Lompany's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
te provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to fnancial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detal, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispesitions of the
assety of the Company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that trangactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and {3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acguisition, use,
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to fitture
periods are subject to the risk that the internmal financial control with reference to {inancial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compitiance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our apinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to flunancial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31, 2024, based on the
tnternal control with reference to financial statements reporting criteria established by the
Cornpany considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note '
on Audit of Ihternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountanty of India”,

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 301051/ E300284

N.K. LOBHA
{Partner)
Membership No. 085155
Place: New Delhi

Date: 19t June, 2024

XY
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HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

BTANDALONE BALANCE SHEET
Awn at 3tat March, 2024

et e e e v o NE 00 IRKRIE)
Parficulars . Note As at 31.03,2024 As gt 31022003
I EQUATY AND LIARILITIES
(1) BHAREHOLDERS' EUNDS
(8} Shore Capitsl o 7.001.00 7.001.00
{b) Reserves & Surplus 3 13,0316 HH110
| 20,032.76 18,112.10
(2} CURRENT LIABILITIES ’
(a) Other Currom Liabilies 4 H.21 a0
{b) Short tarm Pravisions 5 0.52 0.26
B.7T3 7.56
TOTAL ‘ 20,039,49 18,719.66
0 ASSETS
(1} NON-GURRENT ASSETS
{a) Propedy, Plant & Equipmant ] b.62 : -
{b) Non-Current Investments 7 20,026.80 16.714.40
20,027.42 18,714.40
{?) CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Cagh & Cash ogulvalents a B.56 175
(b) Bhert tarm loans and Advancea 8 a5t 3.51
12,07 .26
TOTAL 20.039.48 18,718.86
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Seo accompanying notes forming par of
Standalone Finangial Statements A8

tn terms of our raport attached For and behalf of Board of Directors of Hart Shankar
Singhania Holdings Private Eimited
For LODMA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 301051E/E300284 : '

.C.L,’__ . k/ ' \.(
Dr. Raghupati Sifghania Bharat Har Singhania

. Diracibr Dhractor
(DN 00036128) (DIN:ODO41166)

MN_K Lodbw
Partner
hMembemship No. 085156 [ 2
Place: Maw Dealhi
Date: 19.06.2024

Divya Baghel

Gompany Secretary

{M.No. A83611)



HARI BHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

STANDALCNE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31st March, 2024

13

I terms of our report attached

For LODHA & COQ LF
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regisiration No. 30105 1E/E300284

N_K Lodba
Pannear
Memborship No, Q85158
Plage:; New Dathi

Date: 19.06.2024

{¥ In fakha)
Particulars Note 202324 2022-2%
. Revenua from Operations 10 2,057.08 474,58
Total Income 2,067.00 474.59
H  Expenses:
--Dapreciation and Amortization Expanse 8 G111 -
~Finace Cost | " 0.79 .
=Employes Benaflt Expenses 12 459 Aa?
~Cither Expenses 13 380,20 64.00
Total Exponses 396.01‘5 67.97
|t Profit/ {Loss § bafore exceptional, extracrtinary
{tarng and tax  (1- H) 1,861.03 20662
IV Exceptions Hems ) .
V. Profit/ {Loss ) befors axtraordingry fems and tax
{(HE-1V) 1,661.03 406.62
V1.  Extraprdinary fterms - -
VIL  Profit/ (Lons ) before tax (V-VI) 1,861.00 A406.62
VI, Tax Expongs:
1} Currant tax 283.00 100,55
2) Earilar years adjustments {0.12} {11.40)
3) Duferred tax charges/eredit - -
X, Profit! {Loss) for the period {Vil- VIli) 1,370.45 MT.AT
X. - Earning per Equity Share {¢):
Basit and Diluted 18 10.58 247410
Significant Accounting Policies 1
See accompanying notes forming part of Standalone
Financial Statermants 239

For and behalf of Board of Directors of Har Shanioar
Singhania Holdings Private Limited

Dr. Raghupati Singhania
e
{DMN: QOO36129)

ok

Divyr Baghel
Company Secretary
{M.No. AG3831)

O

¢
Bharat_Hari Singhania

Dirsctor
{DIN:00041156)

(DIN: DO0EB421)



HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows fut the yoar anded 3141 March, 2024

\ (% In lakha)
B.No Partizutars ’ i ROF3-24 2022
A [Canh Flow from operating Activifes )
Net Profit (inzs) bafony Tax and Prior period income / {expanss) 1.661.03 AD6.62
ADJUSTMENT FOR:- :
Add : Fremium on Redemption of frel, Shares AWAT -
Depreciation 011 -
Interest Expence i 4!] -
{.eas: Proft on Sate of invastments (Net) (1,530.36) {21.24)
Rividand income (FRO70 {452.38)
FCEIY )| A 7 X
Chanom i
(increase) / Decrease in Other Recalvables S, -
{Ineruase) / Decreasa in Other Payables {1.00} £.88
Net increass / Decreate in Working Capital (1.0 a.68
Cash Generated from Oparation
Income loves paidfelund {2bn.61) {142 48)
Not Gnsh flow fram Oparating activities o - ‘ EC AL (203.80)
B, 1Cash Now from investing activities
Purchase of lnvestinerit (280821} (980.46)|.
Bale af nvestnwgnt . 2524 1 T804
Dividend Recalvad Tae.12 463,36
Purchaze of Propavty, Plart and Equipmant {0.73) -
Nat GaEsh fiow from investing activities . il i : . ] LR . " 27002
. {Canh Nlow frem Flnancing activitips
G0 Recoived 400.00 u
IGD Repayrnant (400.00) -
Irdmrest pald .79 -
Dividand paid on Cumulative Redeomable Preference Shares [57.49) {70.00)
Right Izsue of Egulty Shars 1,400.00 -
Redemplion of Prof. Shares {1, 400,00 -
Praniuth on Redemption of Pref, Shares (383,71} -
Mot Cash flow form Finnnclnj activitlos . {441.89) i {r0.00)
NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 5.81 {268y
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 174 443
CABH & CABH EQUIVALENTA AT THE END OF THE PEEIOD A58 115
Cauh & Ga&h Equivalants consint of the following :
Cash on hand L4 ] .00
Balances with Scheduitd Banks (Including Other Bank Balancas) 8.68 1.74
.58 1,75
SignHicant Accounting Policios 1
Beq actomparying notes forming part of Slandalone Finenciatl Sidtements 239
For and bahalf of Board of Directors of Had Shianker
It tarms of our report altached Singhania HodIngs Privale Limited .
For LODHA & COLLP
Ghartered Acoountants ‘
Firn Regisiration No. 3010512300204 e
‘ - (ot omeeme” o
Dr, Raghupatiffinghaniz Bharat Hari Singhania
— Diiracior Director
(DN (031248} {DIN-OD04 11 58)
N.K Lodha
Partner
Merberghip No. 086165 -
Phica: New Dalhi
Date: 18,08,2074 E
Divya Baghe ARhOK KL ra
Compary Secrelary rector

M Ho. ABIBT) (HHN: enteB4z1)
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HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 318t March,2024

NOTE 1

Significant Accounting Policles

1.1

1.2

1.4

148

1.6

Books of Account have been maintained on mercantile basis and racognizes income and
axpanditure on accrual basis (except where recovery / realfzation is doubtful where tha same is
accaunted for on recovery/realisation). The reporting currency is INR { /) and all values are
rounded off to the nearest INR 00,000 { ¥ Lakhs) and upto two decimal places, axcept when
otherwise indicated.

The Preparation of financial staternents requires the management of the Company to maks
estimates and assumption that effect the reported amounts of assets, liability and disclosure of
contigent liabilites on the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reported period . Difference between the actual results and estimates are
fecognised in the pariod in which the results are known / materliszed.

Gurrent Tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the current year as
per the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. Daferred Tax Assets and Liabililies are recognized in
respect of current year and prospective years. Deferred Tax Assets is recognized on the basis of
feasonable Nirtual certainity that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which the

sAamea can be raalised.

The investment are held for long term and are valued at cost of acquistion.The long-tarm
investment are shown at book value as reduced by provision for diminution in their respective
values, Provigion for diminution in values of investments is mads oniy if In the opinion of tha
management, such decline is other than temporary and is provided for each investment individuaily.

Contigent liabilites , if material , are not provided for and are disclosed by the way of notes,
contigent assels are neither recognised nor disciosed in the financial statements. A provision is
recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and il is probable
that an outflow of resources/ economic benefits will be required to settle the obiigation | in respect of
which a reliable eatimates can be made for the amount of obligation.

Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depraciation. Depreciation on
Property, plant & squipment is provided on Straight Line Method as per the useful life specified in
Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013.
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HARE BHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS FRIVATE LIMITED
HNotes to Standalone Firancial Statamants for the yoar ended 315t Manh, 2024

o § [t in lakhg)
- " As at As at
i
Farticulars HM.022024  31.03.2023
NOTE 2
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised * ‘
8,00,00,000( Provious year 10,00,000 ) equity shares of 2 10 sach 8,000.00 100.00
81,00,000 { Previous ye 1,80,00,000) Cumulative Redeematile Praference Shares of © 100 sach 8,100.00 16,000.00

16,100.00  16,100.00
* During tha year, a8 appiaved by the shareholder in Dte EGM and ffing of Form Mo SH-7 with ROC, the authorised shara capital of tha Company
has been reclassfied.
Ilagued, Subacribed and Paid up
140, 10,008 { Previous year 10,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 cach hally paid ) 1,401.00 1.00
£6,00,000 { Previous year - ¥0,00,000) 1%Cumutative Hedeernable Prefarence Shares of ¥ 100 each 5,600.00 7,000.00

7,004.00 7,004.00

Equily Bhares 1% CRPS
Az at An at
#) Reconalilation of numbar of Bhares Outstanding # _‘3;_;&2 4 31.04.205%  31.03.2024
At tha beginning of perod {Nos.} 16,000 10,000 0,00,000
Add:- tseuad during tha pardpd* : (Nom)  1,40,00,000 - “ *
L.esg-Redesmad duriig he vear* (Nos.) L - (14,00, 0003 -
Qutstanding at ond of Poriod {Noa) _ 1,4p,10,000 0 56,00,000 70,00,000

*Euring the year, 14,00,000 1% Cumulative Rodaemable Prefarence Shares of face value OF 100 sach n tedeemed ol of ihe procesds of
R, 1.40,00,000 of face vaiue of 10 aach from frash issue of equity share. The pramium paid of Re. 383.71 lakha on redamption has bean charged
to staternent of Profit and Loas Account.

b) Sharpholders halding more than 5% of total ssad Shares

Equily Bhares 1% GRPS

Sharehplders Name Ax af Az at As st Ax at

SL03.2004  3.03.2023 | 31.03.2024 L0308
Bengal & Asgam Company Lid. {Nos.) - - 2000000 - 2500,000
J K Fannet {India) Limited {Moa.) : 3B, 00,000 46,00,000
Raghupatl Singhania (HUF) (Registersd in the name of Raghupati
Singhaniy ae Karta of HUE) [NG.) 11,848,434 B34 - -
Shripati Singhanla (HUF) (Registered In the nama of Anshuman
Binghania as Karte of HUF) {Nowe) 11,647,033 833 . .
Rharat Hari Singhania (Nos.) 39.67 832 2.832 - -
Vinita Singhania {Noa.) 35,02 500 2,500 - -
Raghupatl Singhanta {Mos.) A5 02 500 2 500 - x

¢} Promoter Sharehoiding
(1) Equity Shares

As at 31.03.2024

"""""" % Change
As on % of lotal As ont *% of total during the
MName ‘ 31.03.2024 sharas ¥-03-2023 shares yuar
Shii Bharat Har Slnghania 38,87 832 28,398 7832 28.32% -
0, Raghupati Singemln 35.02,500 o8 b 2 Bon 25, 00% -
Br. Raghupati Singhania as karta of Raghupati Singhania -HUF 11,68 434 B.34% 834 B8.4% -
M Vinita Singhania 36 02 5O0 25.00% 2800 25.00% -
St Sharda Singhacia 2338671 BT 167 1.67% -
$hrt Marsh Pt Singhania 3 Karta of Harsh Patl Singrania HuE 2,33,967 1.67% 187 1.87% :
Shr Vikrampati Singhania ss kann of Vikiampatl Singhanis-HUF 233,087 1.57% 187 167% -
B, Anshurman Singhania s Kerts of Shripat] Singhanla-HUE 11.67.033 8.33% 223 8.33%) -
Tatat 1,40,10,000 100.00%) 10,000 100.00%

* During the yvear there was Right tasue of equity shares, which wes subscribed by each Equity Share holder henca thers 15 no change In % of
hatding,




HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Standatone Financlal Statemontg for the year onded 340t March, 2024

As at 31.03,2023

'3

% Chanqs
As on % of total A% on % of total during tha
MNamg 81-03-2023 shares AT03-2032 | gharan yoar
Sti Bharat Han Singhania 283 28.32% 2,832 28.32% -
B, Raghupatl Singhania N 2,500 25.00% 2,504 25.00% -
Dy, Raghupall Singharia aa karta of faghupat Singhanta -HUF a3 8. 34% B34 B.4% -
smt. Vinita Singhaniz 2500 25.00% 2,500 26.00% .
Smt. Sharda Singania 187 1.67% 167 1.67% -
Shii Harsh Pall Singhaniz as Karta of Harsh Patl Singhania HUF 187 1.0 % 167 187 -
Shn Vikrampstl Singhania aa karta of Vikrsmpatt Singhania-HUE 167 1.67% 167 1.87% -
2hri, Anghuman Slnghanis as Kerta of Bhipatl Singhaniz-HUE 833 8.33% 833 8.33% .
Taotal 19,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%
{H} 1% Cumuiativa Redesmably Preforence Sharos
Az at 31,03.2024
% Change
Az on % of total As on % of total during the
Namap 4 sharog 31-03-2023 sharos year
Bangal & Assam Company Lid, ... £0,00,000 35.71%] 2600000 35.71% L
W K.Fenner (ndia) Limfed 36,00,000 64.20%| 45,00,000 64, 20% -
Total 56,00,000 100.00% | ¥0.00,000 100.00%
AR gt 31.03.2023 .
% Change
% of totat As on % of toral during tha
Name i3 grgs 1310330221 shares year
jBengal & Assam Company Lid. 78,00,000 35.71%  25.00,000 35 71% .
J. K. Fanner {india) Limited 48,00,800 §4.20%| 45,00,000 84.20% -
Tutal 79,00,000 100.00% | T0,00,000 100.00%

d} Termwirights attached to aquity shares ;

The ety shares having a face value of #10 par share. Each shareholder of aqulty shares is entified to one vote par shars and also have sgusl
right in diatribution of profit'surplus in progodien to the number of aguity shares held by the equity sharsholderns.

) Tarind / rights attachod to Cumulative Redeamably Praference Shares
1% Curmigative Redeemabls Preference Shares of face valua of 100 each stall carry m praferantial right with raspect to payment of dividend over
the equity ghares of tha company #nd which shall be redesmad in § equal annuat lnstalments along with premium st the end of 877840 & 10th year
in avcurdance with tha provisipns of section 55 of tha Companios Ack 2013 .

) Thore waa no bonus issue, buy back and Jor lssun of equity shites ofher than for cash considaration in tast fiva years,

p} During the year, the Company has issued 1,40,00,000 no, of aquity shares of Rs. 10 aach on right basia b the tollowing axisling sharehaiders
ang the money received have beon fully uilised for the purpose the lssus was macde.;

Particulary ::::1';2" o {';f;’ valuo issuw price (Rs.)

Right lusue of squity shares o Shi Bharat Had Singhanla 39.84,600 0 3,096,458, 000
Right lnsun of equity shares 1o Dr, Raghupatt Singhanis 35,00 000 10 3.50,00,000
Right issue of equity shares to Dr, Raghupati Singhanta as ke of

Raghupati Singhania -HUF 11 67,600 10 o 16, 16,000
Right tssue of eauily shares to Smi. Vinfta Singhanis 25,00.600 0 3,80,00,000
Rlght Iesie of ity shares to Smt Shanda Singhanta 2,33 800 10 23,538,000
Right igsue of aquity shareg to Shil Harsh Pati Singhania as Karta of

Harsh Pali Singhania HUF 2,33,800 10 2338000
Right Issua of equity shares o Shri Vikrarmpall Singhznia gz karta o

Vikrampat Singhania-HuUF : .33, 800 10 23.38,000
Right issus of squity shares to Shrl. Anshuman Singhanis as Karta of

Shripatl Singhania-HUF 11,88,200 10 1,18,62,000
Total 1,40,00 000 14,00,00,000




HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2024

'8

(2 in lakhs)

. As at Ag at
Particulars 31.03.2024  31.03.2023
NOTE 3
RESERVE AND SURPLUS

[+] CCoun
Opening Balancea 1,831.21 1,831.21
Lass | Transfared to General Reserve during the Year* 54.04 -
‘ 1,717.17 1,831.21
* on salefdisposal of invesiments. Refer Note No. 20
Goneral Reserve
Opening Balance - .
Additions: During the Year* 54.04 -
54.04 -
* on sale/disposal of investments. Refer Note No. 20
RB1 Reserve
Opening Balance 870.89 853242
Additions: During the Year ¥ 1,231.59 247.47
‘ 2,111.48 3479.85
*Refer Mote No. 24 (b)
Gapital Rodemption Reserve
Cpening Balance 9,000.00 9,000.00
Additions: During the Year - -
9,000.00 3,000.00
Profit & Loss Alc
Cpening Balance - -
Add: Ptofit/ (Loss) for the Year 1,378.15 317 47
1,378.15 317 .47
Less: Appropriations _
Dividend paid on 1% Cumulative Redeemable Pref. Shares of € 100 each (57.49) (70.00)
Less: RBI Reserve _ Current Period {275.683) (63.49)
- Earlier Years (2021-22) { Refer Note No. 24 (b)) {955.96) {183.98)
89.07 -
13,031.76 11,711.10
NOTE 4
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory Liabilities 5.83 7.03
Other Expanses payables 0.38 0.27
6.21 T.30
NOTE 5
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Pravision far income Tax (net of Advance tax/TDS of Rs 282 .48 Lakhs (P.Y. _
0.52 0.26

R.100.28 Lakhs))

0.52

0.26
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HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Netes to Standalons Financlat Statamonts for the year onding 31.0%.2024

NOTE -7
Mon Current Invegtments
{¥ I takhe)
1. Namw of the Bodles Gorporate Face As at 31.00. 2024 Ag at 31.03.2072
No, Value | No, of Shates | Book Valus | No. of Sharos | Book Valuo
Leny Term Invesimeonts '
(Other than irade, fully psid up)
A | Asiaciate (Quoted) ]
Bengsl & Aesam Company Limfed 10 2847018 18,810.81 28,5808 15,018.42
B | Angochite {Unquoted)
Tarmastital Foods 1 imited 1a 1.40.00,004 1.400,10 1.44.00.000 T.480.00
€} | Othor Quoted Invostments
a} | Ji Agef Ganetics Limited 10 11,086 44,31 11,986 44,31
b} | JK Lakshmi Camart Limited ] 9.518 EAL 89,518 7.70
&) | JK Paper Limited 10 25,000 7.00 25,000 7.03
g} | JK Tyre & Industdies Limited 2 48,200 1379 49,200 1370
o} | Uidaipur Cament Works Limited 4 27,018 3.1 13,100 0.81
T5.94 | T34
D) | Unguoted Investment
&) j Chnifx Research Pvt, Limited 10 12,74,997 197.38 12,774,597 197.35
B} | J.K. Fanner (tndts) Limited 10 . 20,150 256.01 20,150 286.01
&) | Siahivinayak Trading and Investmant Lirmited 10 1,257 1.52 1.257 1.52
d) | Nav Bharat Vaniya Limited 2 50,502 7513 0,502 75.23
) | Param Bhubham Vanijya Limited 10 6,500 464 5,500 4,64
D | Pranay Investmant {M.P_} Go. Limited 10 4,087 6.58 4,087 8,58
) | Fushpawat! Singhania Hospital & Research Institute 100 15 0.02 15 Q.02
B43.34 843,38
E | Preforance Sharcs
8% Cumulative Redeomable Preference : 100 - - 37,750 IrTs
Shares- (CRES)- Hidrive Developars and
Indugtios Pvi. Limited
F | Inveatmant In Mutyad fund
UT! Manay Market Eund- Direct Growth 79,786 2198.90 0,370 741,43
Total {A+B+GHDIVEHE) 20,024.80 18,714.40
Agaregate book vahse of quoted Investments 15, 808.45 16,991.87
Aggregate book valua of unguoted Investmants 4,120.35 2,722,683
Aggregate market vaiue of quolad investmants 2,25.808.27 97, 345.00




HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(% In lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NOTE 8
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand* 0.01 £.00
Balance with Bank
- On Current Accounts 8.43 1.62
= On Dividend Account 0.12 0.13
8.56 1.75
* Cash on hand Rs. 459/- in absolute numbers in previous year.
NOTE 9
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsacured , Considered Good uniess otherwise stated)
Deposits with Authorities 3.51 3.51
3.51 3.51
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HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

(¥ in lakhs)
2023.24 2022-23
NOTE 10
Revenue from Operations
Dividend Income 726.72 453.35
Profit on sale of Investment 1,278.49 -
Profit on Redemption of Mutua! Fund 51.87 21.24
| 2,057.08 474,59
NOTE 11
Finance Cost
Interest paid 0.79 -
0.79 -
NOTE 12
EMPLOYEE BENEEIT EXPEN$E$
Salaries and Wages _ 4.85 3.92
Employee Welfare & other beneafits 0.04 0.08
4.89 3.97
NOTE 13
Expenses
Other Expenses
Premium on Redemption of Pref. Shares* 383.71 -
Auditors Remuneration
~Audit Fee (inclusive of applicable taxes) 0.30 0.30
--Tax Audit Fee : 0.08 -
-Fee for other services - 0.03
Security Transaction Tax 1.38 “
Certification charges 0.08
CSR Expensas - 62.86
Professional charges 3.43 0.52
Filing fee 0.08 0.05
Expenses related to Sale of Shares 0.82 -
Misc. Expenses 0.37 0.24
390.26 64,00

* Refer footnote to note no 2 a,
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HAR! SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notas to Standatone Financlal Stalerments B the yaar endied 3131 March, 2024

14

15

16

7

12

19

20

Capital eommitmants and contigent liablios

¥ Mil - { Pravious Year - ¥ NI

Amotnts autslanding under the Micm, Smalf and Madium Enterprizas Devalopmeant Act, 2008 (MEMED Act) to the axtent of information avaitable with the
Campany -2 NIl {Pravious Year - ¥ NH).

(A} Bolated Party Disclosure
() List of Related Party.-
&) Asaoclate:- Bengal B Assam Compaty Limited
Teresttisl Fopds Liniited
b Subkidiary of Assoclate - LK Fanner (ivdis) Limtitegy

¢} Dirgctors:- Shri Bharat Heri Singhanta: Smi, Vinita Singhania , Dr. Raghupati Singhanfa and St A JCKnra

¢} Koy Managemont Personnel™ - Divya Aaghel, Company Secretary
" As per Campanies A, 2013

(U] Trangaclicns with Reolated Partlys: ‘
= Ramunaration patd to Gompany Becretary - T 4,85 Lakhs (Previpus Yoar ¥ 3.02 Lakhs H

Chithtg the yos, the Gompany hos lsued 1,40,00,000 no, of eauity BREMes of Rs. 10 asch an right basks i the promatics of Company. Reler Nolo 2g)

Duting the yaar, 14,00,000 1% Gurmulative Rednamable Preferance Shares of fane vatue of T100 sach b beon redeaned. Rafir Mola 2(a)

B} Other Group Comunnles as ner REI Quidelings {as certifivd by the mananement)
JK Fenner (India) Lid. |, Southern Spinners & Processors Lid., Modarn Gotion Yarn Spinnare Lid., JK Amercas ine., LVP Foods Pt Lid, Middve

Halding Pyt Lid. Tanvi Gommercial Pvi. 11d., Radical Agro Products Pyt. Lid_ Nivolt Proparties Pyl Ltd. Roskwood Progertios Py, Lid., Dakwood Propettias
& Fammg Pl Lid, Diantakshmi Buliding Davelopmant Pt Lid., Divya Shree Company (P) Lid., Tetrestrial Foods Limited . Terestial Food Hrocamsors
Privata Limited, Juggital Kambupat Lakghmipal, Yashodhan Enterprises, Udaipur Cemenls Works Lid,

Therg 15 no inflow and outfiow of Foreign Cbtvriiny diring the yaar,

arnings por Share (EPS):
2003524 202733
Net Proft / loss) afier lax for the vear (T takhs) ' 1,370,115 MT.47
Loss:- Praferanice Dividend (€ lakhs) . (57,49} (0.00)
Amount aftributable to Equitysharehokivrs (F ipkha) 1,320,648 ) 24740
Weighted avarage number of squity shares outatanding during the pedod { Nominad 1,25,18107 10,000
value of Tit each)
fasic / Ditlod Earnings per share (%) 10,58 2474.70

() The Company hes paid an interimyinal aquity dividard of T NIl por share (Previous Year 2 Nif)
{1} The Company has pald preference dividend of ¥ 57 45 Lakhs (previous year ¥ 70,00 Lakhs)

During the earter years, the investment tacaived from thy Estate of Shvi Harl Shankat Singhanky as per his WILL hawe besh recordad al fnarket value of
guoted investments and at book value of unquoted hvestmants and ia hat axtent Capital Reserve was craatod. As and when the shares sold, the capital
reserve wil be reduced by the ook valus of share and Ganeral Reserva will incronse, the diference betwaen sals value apd book value will be shown ap
profi in statement of Profit & Logs.
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HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Stundalone Financlil Statemants for the yesr ended 31t March, 2024

21 Glher Information

(0 The Company daes net have any befsaml propedty, and figproceeding has been inftated against the Company for iwiding any benami proparty.

{ii} The Company does not hava eny fransaclions with COMRANIes Slrutk ofF.
() The Gotnpany has ol teded or investad i cryplo cumency of viziual currency during the Ananclal year.

{iv) The Company has not advanced or ioaned or invesled funds {which are malerist elther individunlly or in the sggregate) to any olher person{s) or
- Direclly or Indiracily lend o invest in othar persons or entities identified in any mannet whatsoever by or on bohaif of the campany {ultimate
benaficiaries) or

+ Peowide any Guerantes, Securlty, or the Hke fa o on ahalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarias.

(v} The Company has nol received any fund (which are material oither individualiy or In the aggnegate) fom any Pareon(s) or Entity(les), inchuding Foreign
Entitfes (Fundiny Parly) with the uaderstanding (whather recorded in writlng or othaiwise) that tha Group shall;

- Direttly or indirecily lend of Invest In other persons or entities idantiied in 4y manher whatzosver by or on behafl of the funding party {uitimabs
beneficianes) or
~ Provida any Guarantee, Securily, or the like o behalf of the uitirate baneficiariss.

{ui} The Company hag nat any such irensaction which s not racortad in thi Books of Accounts hat has bean surterlarad or disclosed os ncome during the
four in the tax assessmants ynder the Incarme Tax Act, 1881 (such as, search or suUivey Of sty other ratevant provisions of fhe Incora Tax Act, 1981),

{vil) Company haw nat been declared witful defaulter by amy bank or financtal instiution or govermment o any gaveroment authorty.




' "HARI SHANKAR HINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notas to Standalona Financlal Stataments for the year ending 31t March 2024

»

(i) Provision for bad and doubtiul debts: ¥ Nit
(i}) Provision for Diminution in the value of investmerts - & Nil

23 Provision for Income Tax has bean made considering certain allowances /adjustmonts available and a8 asseseed by the
managamant,
24 .
{a) The Company being 2 Cora Investment Company is mainly dapendent on the invastes companies’ operations Tho company has
sufficient liquidity to meet its ebligations and is continuously monitaring any materal change in gconomic conditions.
(b} The Company vide latter dated 24th January, 2024 to the Reserva Bank of india (RB1), has communicated that against the shortfall
of Rs. 1,138.94 Lakhs in transfer of the amuunt to statutory resarves as par provisions of Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1834 ("RBI Act’) for the financial yesr 2021-22 , the Company has transferred Rs. 183.95 Lakhs to ®BI Reserve Fund (parf of
Resatve and Surplus) out of the profit of the Compary for the year 2022-23 . The balance shorifall of Rs. 055.96 Jakhe (difference
between Ra. 1138.04 lakhs and Rs, 183.98 lakhs) of year 2021-22 as per provisions of seclion 45- IC of The RE! Act as stated
above, alongwith Ry, 27583 lakhs of current financlal year is transferrad fo the RB! Resorva Fund, during currant year,
25 Group entities that are not vonaolidated in the GFS :
{a) Ait companles as stated in Note no. 18 (B) except Bengal & Assam Company Limited (Consolidated), Terrestrial Foods Limited
{Consolidated)
28 Componants of Adjuated Net Worth (ANW) and other related informations:-
Particulars As at As at
31.03.24 31.03.23
i} ANW as a % of Risk Weighted Assets 492 14% 282.77%
i} Unrealizead apprecialion in the book value of guoted investmants { ¥ Lakhs) 98,514.77 41,207.40
fily Diminution in the agaregate book value of quotad investmeants - -
Liv) Laverage Ratio 0.06 0.13

27 Investment in other GIGu:-

a) Total amount reprasenting any direct or indirect capital contribution made by one CIC in another CIC {including name of CIC)

- Bangal & Assam Company Lid, (Equity} T15,810.61Lakbs (PY ¥15,918.43 Lakhs)

b) Number of ClCa with their names wherein the diregi or indirect capitst confribution exceeds 10% of Cwied Funds

-~ Bengal & Assam Gompaity Lid.

€} Numbar of CICs with their names wherein the direct or indirect capital contribulin is less than 10% of Ownad Funds - NIL

28 Off Balance Shaet Expostre - NIL

28  Invostmonts

{ ¥ Lakha }

81 |Particularg
Nn.

As at
3M.03.24

Ao at
31.03,21

1y |Value of Investments
i} Gross Valye of Invesiments
a) In Indiz
b) Cutside India
Provisions for Dapraciation
a) in India
k) Qutsica Indla
iii}|Net Value of Ihvestrmants
a) In India ‘
b} Quisida India
2) |Movemant of provigions held towards depraciation on
investments
iM{Opening balance
i} |Add: Provisions made during the year

~——

v} Closing baltance

fif}jLess:VWrita offfwrite back of excess provisions during the year

20,026.80

20,026.80

18,71440

18,714.40
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HARI BHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Stendadone Financial Staternants for tho year anding 31at March 2024

31 {3) ALM - Matuity patters of Assets and Ligbiities

e e o {¥ Lakhs }
Parllculars 1 B 14 duys over over | over 3 ovar over avpr 3 Over ° Totaf
to to to manth upto |month & month &) Gmonth& | 1yeark | yoars & § yaars
T 14 k1114 ] 2 wonth upto upits upto upto upto
days days diys 3 & 1 yoar dyoars | B yours
mantha | manthg
Advantes - “ " - - N A R N T T
nvesiments B - 2a7.00 500.00 - 1.00 - 280400 | 141000 | 14,404.84 20,026.84
Rorowings - - " B - - - - - - -
Foreign - . M " N N . T M T "
Curranicy
Adisats
Faralgn i - - - M p - T z .
Gurrenty
Liabiitiag -
31 (b} Busihegs ratipa
Varticulars As at A at
- 31.5.2024 | 34.3.2023
Featurn on Eduity (RoE) ) 10.10% 214%
Refurn on Agsals (ROA) &.58% 1.80%
Hat Prafit per Employea* - -
* Hot Comparable as the Gompany has only oha employod
A2 Provistons and Contingoncies:-
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ (€ Lakha }
Break up of Provislons and Conth ' shown under the Profit and {.oze Acoount 2023-24 | 202223
Provisions for depreciation on Inves o - -
| Brovision towaidy NPA » : -
Frovision made towsrds Income Tax . 283001 100.58
|Othar Provision and Contingencles (with detai riier ygar adjystments o1n]  (11.40)
Provision {or Standard Assels . s :
33 Concentration of NPAS
Particuters C T T Amount T Exposure
(¥ Lakhs )| nsa%of
Total
‘ Aaspts
Tetal Exposiie 1o on iva NPA aceoums B .
34 Miscellaneous disclosuies
Twy Regisiration] icancel aulbharisation, by Whatever Nama calied, oblained Hom BT Transal B Regh, N, 1.4, 03458 ai. 14 06,14
Secior naguistors ‘ '
By Panalten imposad by 61 and other reguiatorg including striciures or direetions on tha basie NiL
of hapaction reponts or ofher agversa Andings )
c) if the puditor has expressed any moedified opinion(s) or olher servation{s) s hla guoit NA,

feport or hmited raviaw repont o respect of the Anancial rosuits of any previdus fissncind year
o quarter which bag an impact on the pvofit o Ioas of tha reportable pariod, with notas on

11 How the modified opinion(s) or pther reservaticne]s) Ius been resohed; of . NA
H){if the same has not baen resclved, the mason thareot and the sleps which (he GG ntands NA
take In the matler.
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3 Diclosure of detalls a8 required by REFZO1E-20/B8M0RNBFC (PD) CC. NO, 10203,10 004/2010-20 Dated November 04, 2019 regarding
Licuidity risk manegement framework for non-banking findncial Companios and Gots Ivastment Gompanjes

(i} Funding Concentration based on gignificant vounlerparty

S.Ng,

1

---------

Nil Hil Hil | XTI

No. of Sigrifigant Countarparting Ampunt | % of Trade Deposits | % of Total Ushifities

{il) Top 20 Large Dapoalts - Ni

(i} Top 10 Borrawings - Nil

(v} rfpgn;:vdming Concantration based on sianificant Insliurmentproduct
B.MNo.

Hame of Instrumentiproduct Amonrt | % of 1ol Lisbiies
1 NI NI Nit
(v) Stock ratiog
$.No, ) Paricuars %
.. ommarcial Pa)
) 1as 8 % of fotul public funds
o {85 a % of folal Sabiiles N.A
(i} _lan a % of total aagals
b Mon-Convertible Debentures
.. {88 8 % of whal public funds
(0|38 8 % of iotel iabilties NA
" (i Tas 8 % of Kotal ansets _
¢ Short Term Liabilities
i) .. 188 8 % of dlal public funds BA=%
(i) ..{ae & % of Wtal Habilias 1.0.12%
(M iag B % of lolel assets 0.03%

{vil The Company's fioard of Direclors has the overall responsibiity for tha estabishment and oversight of the nigk menggemant Tramework. The hoard
of directors has esiahished tho Assat Liabilly Suporvisory Committee (ALCO), which iz respongible for devaloping  and montoring fisk
managamert policied. The Company's sk management poliches ae estabiished (0 Iently and analyse tha riska faced by the Company, to et

oppiopiats ek emite and control, and 0 manitor sk and adherence to limite Th

refiect change in market condifions ghd the company's activities.

# ik managament policos and systems ard raviewad raguiary to

The infoimation ag required ks torms of Para 29 of Cove Invissiment Companies (Rasarve Bank) Directions 2016 are enclosed as per Adnexura -1

Corporata Social Aesponsihility

Al par the pravisinns of tha Bection 138 of the Comparilen Act, 2013, the Compenty i required o aperd 1, NE Guing the year (pravious yar
Re.82.86 kakhn) and fully opant the stated amounl, The detaits arg as uders

(¥ Lakdin )
Particulars A it An at March,
March, 31 3 2013
e 2024
) Giross BMoan required to ba spent by during tha year - B 88
(i) Armount apent during the year (Refer note no 11)
{8 Construction /Acaulsition of any agsets - -
{b) On purposes oihar than (1) above . &82.56
(i} Bhorttail at the end of ihe year - -
(v} Total of previous years shorfal - -
{v) Reason for sholall - -
{vi) Nalum of CSR activities + Promoling
aducation
{vh) Detalta of reiated party trapzactions e.g contribytion to A tust Controled by the company In NA MA
{witi) Whare g proviaion s made with respect o a liabliity Incumed by enterdng intp a confractunt HA NA




';',q

38 The Company haa uped an ascounting saftware (or maimaining its books of account which hag & feature of recording audit trall {edit Ing) facility and
tha zama has operated throughaut the year for ol reevant tadssctions recorded in he said software.

45 Previous year figures have boen reclassified! re-castad sulltably whenevar considercd nhotesEary.

Interms of ol repon altached For and bahalf of Board of Direclors of Har Shankar Singhania Holdings
te Litited
For LODHA & SO LLP
Chanered Accountants
Firn Regiatration No, 301061 E/ £300284
- - - &
r. Raghy a&aﬂm Bharal Harl Singhanin
[rector Dlrecior
{DIN: D00aB129) (LN:00041150)
NE ha
Pariner

Nernbarship No.OBS955
Place: New Dalhi
Dater: 19.06.2024

Divya Eaghel Hok Kumar Kinra
Company Secretary Direclor
M.No. AB3831




Annexure 1

HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED

Particulars as per NBFC Diractions as at 31.03.2024

{88 required in terms of Paragraph 21 of Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank ) Directions, 2016.)

¥in lakhs

Partlculars

Liabilities side :

M

2}

(a)

{b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

(9)

Loans and advances avalled by the NBFCs
Inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not

paid ;

Debantures | Sacurad
: Unsecurad :
(other than falling within th
meaning of public deposits*)
Daferrad Crediis
Tarm Loans
Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
Commaercial Paper
Public Deposits
Other Loans {specify nature)
Breakup of 1(f) abave (Quistading public deposits
inclusive of interest thereon but not paid)

Amount
Out-
standing

NIL
NIL

NiL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

Amount
Overdue

NIL

NiL.

Assets gide :

Amouni outstanding

(3)

(a)
(k)

Break - up of Loans and Advances including
bills receivables [ other than those included
in(4) below]:

Secured

Unsecured (Excluding Advance Tax of ¥ 40.64 lakh

NiL
MIL

(4)

Break-up of Leased Assots and stock on hire
and other assets counting lowards
AFC activities

NIL

(5}

()

(ii)
(iti)
(i)
(v}

W

(i)
(iif)
(iv)
V)

Break-up of Investment .
Chrrent Investment ;
Long term Invetments

Quoted ;
Shares:  (a) Equity

{b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Linits of mutual funds
Government Securities
Others (please specify)

Shares: (a) Equity

{b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Unlts of mutual funds
Government Securities

Others (please specify)

MNIL

1588645
NiL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

1843.45
N
2186.80

NIL
ML
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HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDING PRIVATE LIMITED
Particubars as par NBFC Directions as at 31.09.2024

¥ in laichy
{&) [Borrower group-wise classification of all assots, financed as In
{Ayand(4) above '
Amaunt nel of provisions
Category Secured LInsacured Total
1 _|Related Farties ™ Nit, N, HIL
(e} Subsidiaras
b8}l Companies in the same group Nl NI, Mit.
6t Gther related paries NIL NIC MNiL.
2, jcthor than related parties NI ML, NIL
: Tolgl ML, NIL NIL.
{7} [investor group.wize classification of ail Invagtmente(current and
long ferm) in xhares and securities (both quoted and snguoted) @
Market Vaiue f Braak Book Value
Category gy o fait value oF {Net of
NAV = Provigions)
1 iFalated Fariles * ‘
@] Subsidlartes NI NIL,
{ty] Gumpanias in (he same group ‘ 2 28 565,00 Y7 p2a.00
e Other related paifies NiL ML
2 jOther than related parties 2.283.70 2,188.80
Totat - 2,30 829 a2 20,024.80
**  As per Accounting Standand of K2AI,
" For the purpose of market / Break-up Value, Quoted Sharel Units have been valued at Market Price as
on 31.3.2624. The Unguoted Shares have been vilued ag par Break-up Value calculated a3 por Audiled
Balance Sheat as on 31,3,.2023 where the Audiied Balance Sheel as on 31.0:3.20:4 are nol availabia
{8) Cther information
Partioutars Amount
{i) |Giroga Non - Parforming Assets e— NIL
{if} iNet Non - Performing Assala NI
(B JAssels acyuired in satisfaction of debt ML,

For and behall of Board of Directors of Hard Shankar  Singhania

In terms of our report attached ings Privite Limitad .
For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accourtants
Firm Registration No. 3010515/E300784
? o <
Dr. Raghupati $inghania Bharat Hari Singhania
Dirdctor Ditrarchor
) " (DN QOOAG120) {DINQ0041158)
Ii‘a-mnw ' &
Membershlp No 085145 il ' - \/\/\’\7@
Place: New Dathi
Dxaie: 19.08.2024 ‘ Divya Baghai P Ashok Kumar Kj
Company Secratary f

{M.No. AG3621) ; DODGEA21)






) 12, Bhagat Singh Marg, New Dalhl . {0 001, tadia
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y @ LLE Ermail : dethigindhaco,comm

Chartered Accountanis

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Hari $hankar Singhania Holdings Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying conselidated financial statements of Hari $hankar Singhania Holdings
Private Limited {"the Company”) and its associates, comprising the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st
March 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated $tatement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as
“consolidated financial statements"),

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act”) in the manner so required and give 3 true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, and
its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinfon

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10} of the Act, Our responsibilitics under those Standards are further described In the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Pinancial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied our
other ethical responstbilities in accordance with these requirements and the [CAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
apinion,

Emphasis of Matter

Attention is drawn to
As per the Sectlon 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 {as amended time to time), 8 NBFC is

required to transfer @ 20% of its net profit of the year to RBI Fund every year. The Campany had
transferred Rs. 284.81 lakhs, being balance available in P&L at year end in FY 2021-22, to RBI Reserve
Fund after transfer of Rs. 9,000 lakhs to Capital Redemption Reserve for redemption of preference shares
in the year 2021-22 hence there was shortfall of Rs. 1,139.94 lalkhs (and in the financial year 2022-23, the
Company had transferred additional Rs. 183,98 lakhs to meet above shortfall). The balance being net
shortfall of Ry. 955.96 lakhs as stated in note no 21(b) have been transferred to the RBI Reserve Fund out
of profit for the fnancial year 2023-24.

Our Opinton is nolL madified in respect of ahove matter.

Regd. Office - 19, Esplanade Mangions, 14 Government Flace Sast, Kolkata 700069, West Bergal, India,
lodha & Co (Registration No. 3010518) a Partnership Finn was converted {nto Lodha & Co 1P
(Registralion No. 301053 1E/F300284}) a Limited Liability Bartnership with effect froim December 27, 2073

Eodkata Mumbai MNew Dethi Chennai Hyderahad {aipur



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report: Thercon

The Company’s Board of Directars is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board Report is expected to be made available o us
after the date of this Auditor’s Report,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do nat
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board Report, if we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect te the preparation of these Consolidated Financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally aceepted in India including the Accounting Standards [AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, The respective board of
directors of the companies of the Company included in the Company and associates are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safepuarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting Frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates thal are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial contrals, that were operating eftectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the conselidated financial statements by
the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective board of directors of the companies
included in the Company and associates are responsible for assessing the Company's and Associate's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Gompany
and Associates or Lo cease operations, or has no realistic alterpative but to de so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Company and Associates are aim
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company and Associates.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when It exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of uscrs taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit We alse:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the consolidated financial slatements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= (btain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the audit in order to desipn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Associates Companies has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of aceounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to dyaw attention in our
auditor's repor. to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
ohtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company and Associates to cease to continye as a going coneern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and comtent of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* (btain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regacding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company and Associates to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included in the consclidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities Included in the consolidated financial




statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audils carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit apinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in the
section titled "Other Matters” in this audit report.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, maices it probable that the economie decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors In {i) placning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (if) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and other entities included in the
consolidated financial statement of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements also include the Company share of net profit of ¥ 28,928.82 lakhs
for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as considered in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
two associates whose financial statements/ financial information have not been audited by us. The
financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated statement, in so far ay it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of two associates, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

One of the associate presents its financial statements as per applicable IND-AS and same have been
audited by gther auditors. Audited financial statements {as per indiun Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS)] of
abave assoclate have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles in accordance with
the Companies (Accounting Standards} Rules, 2014 (‘IGAAP) (as amended) which is adopted by the
Company and certified by the management of Associate. Our opinion in so far as it relates to these is
hased on the {GAAP conversion adjustments prepared and certified by the management of the company.

Qur repaort is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1} As required by the Companies {{Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Qrder”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the
consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the the associates incorporated in India, as noted In the 'Other Matters' paragraph, we give
in the “Annexure A" a staternent on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.




2)

a)

)

c)

d)

f)

&)

h)

i.

5

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the
other auditors on financial staternents and other financial information of associates, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements.
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesatd
consolidated financial statement have been kept so far as it appedrs from our examination of those
books and the reports of other auditors,
The consolidated halance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss and the consolidated
staternent of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financlal Statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014, as amended.
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Campany and taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of its
associate companies incorporated in India covered under the Act, none of the directors of the
Company companies and its assoclate companies incorporated in India covered under the Act, are
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164{2} of
the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial statements of the
Company and its associate companies incorporated in India, the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B*, Our report expresses an unmedified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial statements
With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors, referred to in other matter paragraph on scparate financial statements /
consolidated financial statements of its associates, we report that the remuneration paid by its
associates to ity directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act. The Holding Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as
stipulated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the
Company.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Company and its Associates. [Refer Note no, 14(b) to the
consolidated financial statements)
The Comipany and its associates have made provision, as required under the applicable law or
Accounting Standards, for material foreseeable losses, If any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.,;
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iv.

b

Amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
have heen duly transferred without any delay by the Company or its assoctates incorporated in
India during the year ended 315t March, 2024,

{a) The respective Managemenis of the Company and its associate companies which are
companies incorporated in India whosge financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other auditors of such companies respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company or its associale companies to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recarded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatseever by or on behalf of the Holding
Company or its assoclate companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b} The respective Managements of the Company and its associate companies which are
companies incorporated in India whese financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us and the other auditors of such companies respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been recefved by
the Company or its associate companies from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company or its assuciate company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of associate companies
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11{e), as provided under h
{iv} (2) and (h) above, contain any material misstatement.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the dividend declared
and paid during the year by the Company and its assoclate is in compliance with provisiens of
Section 123 of the Act.

The Board of Directors of an Associate Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is
subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of
dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration
of dividend

Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective
auditors of assuciate companies which are companles incorporated in India whose financial

statements have been audited under the Act, the holding company and associate companies have

used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of recording




audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the respective softwares except for the instances mentioned below:

a. Incase of 2 subsidiary companies of associate incorporated in India, the feature of recording audit
trail {edit log) facility was not enabled for direct changes made to data in database leve) and in the
application when using privileged access rights and in one subsidiary of associate for software
used for recording of milk procurement.

b, In case of 2 associate companies of associate, the feature of recording audit trall {edit log) facility
was not enabled at the database level for the accounting software to log any direct data chauges.

¢. Incase of 1 agsociate company of associate, the accounting software used for maintaining its books
of account does not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

d. In case of 1 associate company of associate (a) the audit trail feature was not enabled throughout
the year for certain relevant tables at the application level; (b} for privileged access to specific
users to make direct changes te audit trail setting and {c) that the audit trail {edit Jog) for certain
information at database level {which records anly modified values) was not enabled during the
year,

e. In case of 2 associate companies of associate, the featnre of recording audit crail (edit log) facility
was not enabled in the accounting software for the period from Apri) 1, 2023 to April 20, 2023 and
April 1, 2023 to May 2, 2023, respectively.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout
the year for the respective accounting softwares, we and respective auditors of associate
companies did not come across any instance of the audit trail features being tampered with.

As pruvisu W Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, s applicable from April 1, 2023,
thus reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable
for the financial yeur eoded March 31, 2024,

For LODHA & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

A\

N.K Lodha

(Partner)

Membership No. 085155
Place: New Dethi

Date: 03.009.2024
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Annexure-“A” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our réport of even date on the consolidated linancial statemenis of Hari Shankar Singhania Holdings
Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024))

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following companies
incorporated in India and inclyded in the Consolidated Financial Stalements of an associale (Benpal &
Assum Company Limited {"BACL")), have certain remarks given by the respective auditors in their reports

under the Companies (Auditor’s Reporl) Order, 2020 (CARDY

Clause
numbher of the
- . CARO report
8. NoJ Nmme CIN Relation which s
qualitied or is
adverye
JK Agri Genetics \ . Subsidiary of -
bl Linited 1LO1400WB2000P1.C091286 BACT (xvii)
2. | JKF Evolve Limited | U29309TN2022PLC155758 S“bgfgg of ~ (xvii)
S Subsidiary of
3, | K Femner(India) | 119491 TN1992P1.C062306 BACL (vii)a)
Limited
Drwarkesh Encrgy - Associate of .
JTK Tnsurance Brokets o - Associate of .
5| Limited U74999D1.2002PLC114816 BACL (xvii)
et of (i)((c:;, {ii?()b(). )(iii)
. ‘ - : ; ssociate of &), (vii) (a),
6. | JK Paper Limited L21010GJ1960PLCO18099 BACT o) &
()b}
o Subsidiary of
JKPL Packaging U36991DL2021PLC383047 |  Associate of (xvii)
Products Limited # .
BACL
Step down
. - Subsidiary of .
8. | TheSipurPaper | 11510107G1938PLCO00SST | Associateof | (NPMVINE)&
Mills Limited # - {xx}
BACL
Subsidiary of
Enviro Tech . . Associate of (iii)(e) and
{;
9 | Ventures Limited # | U73100GI2007PLCO7S5963 BACL Covi
S | Subsidiary of ‘l
1o, | MHorizon Packs U21014MH2001PTCI33116 |  Associate of (ii)b)
Private Limited # BACL




# Submdmry of 1K Paper Llrmte:d‘ o

5.

Nao. Name
Songadh

11 Infrastructure &

HousingLid. & |

Jaykaypur

12 Infrasiructure &
Housing Ltd. # B

For LODHA & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No, ;0,1051!3 EHUOZEM

N.K Lodha
(Partner)

CIN

U45203GJ2009PLCO55810

U452010R2008PLCO10523

Membership No, 0B5 155
Place: New Delhi
Date: 03.09.2024

Clause
number of the
Relation CA.RO. report
which is
qualified or is
adverse
Subsidiary of
Associate of {1)(b)
. BACL |
‘:-ubq:dxary of
Associate of (iXb)

_ BACL




ANNEXURE “8” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report or the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audir of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended 3 1st March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Hari Shankar Singhania Holdings Private Limited (herein referred to as “ the Company”) and its two
associzte companies which are companies incerporated in India and covered under the Act, as of that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company and its associates, which are companies incorporated
in India and covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining tuternal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internat control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Fimancial Controls over Iinancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAL"). These responsibilities include the design, implerentation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the Hmely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Anditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is Lo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nute on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) issued by ICAl and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issuad by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ahout
whether adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial




i

vontrols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material wealmess exists, and testing and
evalualing the design and operating effectiveness of internal contral based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o fra ud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinfon on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statement

Meaning of Internal Financia! Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's infernal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those pelicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are belng made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of ubautherized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statemments,

Inherent Limitations of Internal ¥Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of interpal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and nol be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
slatements may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree aof
compliance with the policics or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the report of other auditor, the Company and ity
associates, which are companies incorparated in India and covered under the Act, have, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of March 31,
2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
un Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”.
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Others Matters

Qur aforesaid report under section 143(3){3) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as relates to two associate
companies, which are incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report(s) of the auditors of
such companies incorporated in India.

For LODHA & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firmn's Registration No.201051E/E300284

i

(Partner)

Membhership No. 085155
Place: New Delhi

Date: 03.09.2024



. HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

CCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

13

Asg at st March 2024
. {¥in lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
Note 31.3.2024 31.3.2023
L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) SIIAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
(a) Share Capital 2 7,001.00 7,001.00
(b) Reserves & Surplus 3 1,11,243.92 83,061.00
1,18,244.92 90,062.00
(2) COURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Other Current Liabilitics 4 6.21 7.30
(b) Short term Provisions 5 0.52 0.26
6.73 7.56
TOTAL 1,18,251.65 90,069.56
IL. ASSETS
(1)  Property Plant & Fquipment 6 0.62 -
(2) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{a) Non-Current Investments 7 1,18,234 96 9),064.30
1,18,239.58 90,064.30
(3} CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Cash and Cash equivalenis 8 B.56 1.75
() Short Term Loans and Advances 0 a.51 .51
12.07 5.26
TOTAL 1,18,251.65 80,069.56
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Financial Statements 24

As per our report of even date
For Lodha & Co LLP .

Chartered Accountants -
FRN 301051E/E300
s o
@}gj\/ S )

ot

Dr. Raghupati }5
¢ Pirector

(121N 00036129)

£

Bharat Hari E;inghani.a

Dhrector

(DIN 00041156)

(N.K.Lodha) z/}f b g‘ (} Mt ‘

Partner Vinita Singhania Ashok Kumnar Kinra -~
. Membership No.0851558 Director _Directst

Place: New Delhi (TIN (0042983) _ADIN00066421)

Date : 03rd Sept 2024

\«, ‘ ?MQ,

Yivya Baghel
Company Secretary
M.Na. A636351



HARISHAMNKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROEIT AND LOSS
¥or The Year Ended 31st March 2024

Y

" (¥in Iakhs)
Particulars Note 2023-24 2022-23
I.  Revenue from Oporations 10 1,430,590 474.59
M. Other Income - _
HI.  Total Revenue 1,430,20 474,59
IV JYxpenges:
Employee Benefit Hxpenses 11 489 397
Finance Cost 12 (.79
Drepreciation and Amortization Experses & 031
Other Expenses 13 A90.26 64.00
Total Uxpenses 39608 67.97
V. Profit/ (Jose ) before exceptionat and extyaardinary
ttems and tax { 1I[- IV ) 1,034,845 4(6.62
VI Exceptional Iems
VIL Profit/ (Losa ) before extraordinary items and tax
{v-v1) 1,034 45 406.62
VIIL. Extracrdinary llems - .
IX. Profit/ (Loss } before tax {VII- VIYI) 1,034.85 406.62
X.  Tax Expense:
1} Current tax TR4.00 100,55
2y Barlier years adjustments {012y {1140
3 Deferred lax chargos/ credit - -
XL Profit/ (Lass) for the pertod (X - X) 75197 31747
XIL OShare in profit of Associates JB8U2 21,449.10
XIIT. Balance after share in profit of Associates (XTI + XIT) . 28,680.79 276657
XIV. Minority Interest - -
XV. Net Prafit far the Year (X111 X1V) 29,680.79 21,766,57_
Earnings per Equity Share (2);
Basic and Diluted 17 236,64 2,16,965,70
Significant Accounting Policles 1
MNates on Financial Stalecents 2-24
: {,:'!/L_‘ P " L‘
As per our repor! of even dule Dr. Raghupati SinfRanid— Bharat Farl Singrhania
For Lodha & Co LLP Director Diroctor
Chartered Accountants e {DIN N0036129) (DN 00041156)

Firm Registration No. 301

(N.K.Lodha)

Partner

Memnbership No.08515% L Vinita Singhanis
Place : New Delld Director
Date : 03rd Sept 2024 (N 00042983)

.{ - .
| ““’““:.‘éﬁ f(/ﬁ A

o

Ashok Kumar ]‘;inra"-"m-
L

" Director
——"{DN 00066421)

vya Baghel
Company Secratary
M.No, A63631



HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITFD
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2024

15

{¥in lakhs)
5.No Particulazs o 202334 202223
A, Cagh Fluw from operating Activites ‘
Net Profit (loss) before Tax and prior period income / (expense) 1,004.85 406.62
ADJUSTMENT FOR:-
Add :Pretnium on Redempton of Prel Shares 7 -
Deprecialion 2.1l -
dInterest Charges 0.79
188 :Profit on Sale of Investments {704.18) (1.24)
{Dividend recebved (726.72)1 (163.35)
(iida) (67.97)
Changes in Waorking Capital
{Increase} / Dicovease in Trade & Other Recrivables " -
Increase / (Decresse) in Trade & Other Payables {Los;y 685
Mat Increase / Decrease in Working Capital o] 685
Net Taxes Paid {#B2.61) {142 48)
Net Cash flow from Operating activitive (295.14) (205.60)
B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of Investmont (2.906.21) {60.48)
Yale of Inveskmont 292416 7805
Dividend received 726.72 15335
| Puschase of Fixed Asset o (U0 ] - -
. Net Caah fiow from Investing activities 743,94 270,83
C. Cash flow from Financing actlvities
ICEY Received HHL0)
{12 Repald {100.00)
Interest Paid 0.7
(ividend paid on Cumulalive Redestnable Preference Shares (57.49) 70.00
Right Tssue of Equity Shares 1A00.00 -
Hedemption of Pref.Shares (1,460.06)
Prerniumm on Redemption of Pref Shaves {383.71)
o ”INet Cash Tlow form Financing activities {441.99) (70.00)
MNET INCREASHE IN CASH & CASH £QUIVALKRNTS A.f1 (2.68})
| {CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING (JF THE PERIOL 1.7% 1.43
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PRRIOD 56 175
Notes ot cash fow starement
Cash & Uash Equivalunby conwist of the following -
Cash on hand 0.01 -
Balances with Scheduled Bank 8.4 1.62
Cn Dividend Account 0.1z 013
8.50 17

Frevious year's figures have been re-grouped / te-arranged / recast wherever necessavy,
The accompanying notes are an integral part of b financial statements

Fow Lodka & Co LLE
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number; 301051 /3002584

Coom

T £, Raghupati Fionghafii
. Director

(DI Q0036129)

Vinita Singhania

[Yireclar

NEK Lodha (DIN 00042983)
Parter

Mensbership No. 085155

FL -“-h“"—‘ -'_\-"\—_.__ —

f L::QE, - / ! |

;

Bharat Hari Binphania
Pirector
(1N 00041156)

Place: New Delhi

Drate - (1%d Sepi 2024

W

B

Jivya H-agl\el
Company Secralary
M. No. ARIGIT

hok Kumar Kinra

Dirgetor—"
(DIN-60880421)
L



HAR! SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE - 1

1. Principles of Consolidation:

(a)

(b)

{¢)

(d)

(e)

{9

(@)

(h)

()

)

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of Hari
Shankar Singhania Holdings Pvi. Ltd (“the Company”) and the financial
staterments of the following companies incorporated in India as on 31.03.2024; -

31 " “Name of the Company Relationship Shareholdi‘mﬁfgm
No.

1 | Bengal & Assam Gompany Lid. Associate U T23.34% |
2 Terrestrial Foods Limited Associate 35.90%

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been
consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book value of like
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group
balances and infra-group transactions. Intra-group balances and transactions
have been eliminated on the basis of information available with the Company.

in case of associates, where company holds directly or indirectly through
subsidiary 20% or more equity, Investments are accounted for by using equity
method in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) ~ 23 “Accounting for
Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”

Post acquisition, the company accounts for its share in the change in the net
assets of the associates (after eliminating unrealised profit and losses resulting
from transactions between the Company and its associates to the extent of its
share directly and indirectly) through its profit and loss statement in respect of the
change attributable to the associate's profit and loss statement and through its
resarves for the balance,

The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in its subsidiary over its
ghare of equity in the subsidiary on the acquisition date, is recognized in the
financial statement as Goodwill on consolidation and carried in the Balance Sheet
as an asset Negalive Goodwill is recognized as Capital Reserve on
consolidation.

Goodwill / Capital Reserve arising from acquisition of associates are included in
the carrying amount of investment in associates.

Where an associate presents consolidated financial statements, the results and
net assets to be taken into account are those reported in that associate's
consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts of the financial statements
of the Company, its subsidiary and its associates are set ouf in their respective
financial statements,

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform
accounting policies, in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
practices,

Figures pertaining to the subsidiary company have been reclassified wherever
considered necessaty to bring them in line with the Company’s Financial
Statements.
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HANE SHANKAR SINGHAMIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for $he year ended 31 March 2024

{Tin lakhs)

Particulara Asat As at

IL0320M 31032023
ROE
SHARE CAPITAL
Axtthorised *
8.00,80,000{ Previous year 10,00,000 ) equity shares of £ 10 each B0 THLOD
81,00,000 ( Praviays year 1.60,004010) Comultalive Redeemnable Preference Shares of # 100 cach 810000  15000.00

1610000 16,100.00
* During the year, as approved by the shareholder in the JGM and filing of Form No SE-T with ROC, the authorised share capital of thi:
. Company has been reclagstied.
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1,40,10,000 { Previous year 10,000) equity shares of T 10 sach fully paid 1,401.00 100
56,080,000 { Urevious year - 70,00,000) 1% Cumulative Redeemiable Prefarence Shaces of T 100 vach 5,600.00 700060

700000 7,007

Baulty Shares 1% CRIS
4) Reconcilliation of pumber of Shares Qulstanding 7 "n\: ;;24 2 ';'; ;;23 1 ‘;.: ;:ﬂ ¢ @ ‘3‘: ;1;23
At the beginnlng of period {Mos.) 1000 10,000 000,000 20,00,000
Adtddi- Lssued during the perod* (deme) 1,40,00,000 - - "
Less:-Redeemned during the year* {(Mow.) - - {14,00,000) -
Quitstaading af end of Pericd (Mos.) 1,40, 11,01k 10,000 56,00,000  70,00,000

*ruring the year, 14,00,000 1% Cumnalative Redeamable Froference Shares of face value of 2100 rach has bean tedestied o5t of the proceeds of
R, 140,00,000 of face value of 10 each from fresh issue of equity sivre. The premium paid of Rs. 313,71 Inkbws on redemption has been charged
to statement of Profit and §.0ss Account.

b} Shareholders holding more than 5% of tofaf issned Shares

Equity Shares 1%CRM
Shateholders Nam As gt T Asat Asat Asat
305,200 31033029 30032024 ILOI023

Rengal & Assam Cmpany Lid. Moz - - HAM0  23,00,000
1K Feoner (India) Limited {Nos.) - - 36,00,000 45,01 {0
Raghupatl Singhania (HUF} (Registered in the name of (Nuw) 11,68,434 ] - -
Faghupati Singhania as Karta of [{UF)
Sheipat Sinrhanda (HUF) (Kegistered in Lhe name of {Mos.) 11.67,033 833 -
Anghutan Bitghanda as Karta of HUE)
Bharat Hari Singhanix {Nows.) 67,632 2832 - -
Vinita Singhania (Nos.) A502.500 7,500 - "
Raghupati Singhania {Mows. ) 33,02,500 L . -
c} Promwter Sharehulding
(h) Equity Bhares
As af 31,03, 2024 e ——
™ o e % Chagge

Ason Asan Voof total | duxing the
Nimar L0822 | % of tota] sharves |  31-03-202% whivey yoar”
Sturd Bharat Fiari Sipglania 30,6752 Haagl 17 2B.30% -
Dr, Raghupali sissgfatia 35,02,500 25.4H% 2500 23.00% "
{ar, laghupati Singhania as karts of Raghupati Singhania -HLJ 11.68.4% oL A4 RH% .

25.00% “gfg{ll‘lﬁ 25.00% -
LS D 1.67% "
187% 167 1 1.67% Z

St Vinita Singhonia
Smt. Sharda Sivg hania

%hri [tarsh Patl Singhania as Karta of Farsh Pati Singhania

St Vikeampat Singhania as karta of Vikrampati Singhania- Lerw] e 1.67% -
Bhut, Anshuman Singhania an Karta of Shripati Singhnnia- 11,672,003 833%| 833 8.33% -
“Tatal 1,30,16,000 Ti0.00%% Wom [ j00.00%

* During the year there was Right Issue of equity shares, which was subscribed by each Equity Shate alder hance S 36 no change in % of
holding,




HARLI SHANIKCAR SINGHANIA HOLMNGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes by Corselidated Financin} Statements for the year anded 31 March 2024

{tin Jakhs)
Av at 31.03.2023
% Change
Agun As oft % of total | during the
Mame 3-03-2003 | % of total shares |  31-03-2022 whiares  year
Shri dharal Harl Singhania 2837 e prEry T
v, Raghwpati Singhanie — N 2500 75.00% -
Dr. Haghupat] Singhania as kntty of Raghupat Singhania - BT R, CET] B35 -
Smi. Vinita Singhania ] 3 2,500 priT) 2,500 B D% -
[Simt. Sharda Gingharia 167 L67% BN G 167%] -
Shei Havsh Panl Singhania as karta of Harsh Far Singhani 187 167% 167 X703 T
Sihri Vikyampati Singhania as karta of Vikrwmpati Singhanis Ta7 1.67% 167 | Lavh -
[Shei. Anshuman Singhania as Korta of Sliripatl Singhania: ~Ea 8.33% %] £.43% -
Total ) 16,000 110, 0%, 10,000 190,06%
{ii) 1% Cumulative fedesmable Preforencs Shares
As at J1.03.702¢
T Change
Ag o Az on Vo of total | duzing the
INanwe 3L03.2024 | % of total shares | 31-03-2023 shates Peir
Bengal & Assam Cowpany Lid. 3,000,560 TR EE00,000 35715 .
FEC Fennes (Tndia) Linvited 36,00.000 64.29% 45,00.000 LFL
Total 56,00,000 10.46%]  76,00,000 108.G0%
As gt 31032023
T T hangn
As oy Ad o Y% of tofal | during the
Name ALO320ZY 1% of bofal shares | 31-03-2022 ghapes year
|Bengal & Assam Company Ltd. T 0,000 /AAR| 500,000 3571% -
K. Fenter (Indin) Limiled 45,600,800 61.29% 45,00,000 2% -
“““““ Total 75,00,000 i6000%] 7000000 163.00%

) Terms/righis attached b squity shares 1

The equity shares having a Tace valuo of T10 per share. Each sharcholder of equity shaves i enfitied to one vote per ahare and alsn have eyual

right in distribution of profit/surplus in propetion 16 the number of equity stires held by the equity sharcholders,

&} Terns / xights attached ) Cumulative Redecmabie Preference Sharas
1% Cumaulative Redesmable Freference Sharcs of face value of 2100 vach shalt carry & preferential right with respect to payment of dividend
wver the equity shaves of the company and which shall be redesmed in 5 equal snnusl instalments along with premivm at the end of 6/7/8/9
& 108h year fn accordance with W provizions of section 55 of the Companies Act 217 .

f) There was no bonua lesue, buy back and for issue of equily shares other than for cash considaration in last Hve years.

&) During the year, the Company has issucd 1,40,00,000 no. of equity shares of Rs. 10 each on right basis to (he foflowing existing sharsholders
and the mongy received have Inen Fally wtilised for the puepose the issue was made,:

Particulsrg nl'::;l:er of Face value (Rs.) lssue price {Rs.)
Right issne of equity sharca to Shvl Bharat ar Singhania | 39,6450 Bl 3 RGARG0
Ripht lssue of equity shares to Dr. Raghupati Singhara 35,00,000 10 3,30,00,000
Right issue of cquity shares 1o Dr, Raghupati Singhenia as 11.67.600 I 1,16, 76,000
| Rigght tssne of equity shates to Smi. Vinita Siydania 35,00,000 R 5,50,00,000
[Ripht lssue of eynity shares to Snt. Sharda Singhania 2,:13,500 10 3,385,000
Right issue of equity sluwes to Shrl Hartsh 'ani Singhania as 7,32,800 14 23,385,000
Right issue of eouity shares to Shri Vikrampali Singhanis ag e 10 L T338,000
Eight isgue of equity shures to Shri. Anshinnan Singhanda as 11,66,200 T 1, 16,462,004
T 140,068,400 T T4,00,00,000




HARI STIANKAR SINGRANLA HOLDYNGS FRIVATE LIMITED
Nates to Consalidated Financlal Statementy for the year ended 31 March 2078

1

e e {Tin fukhs}
Padiculams Aus al 31,03.2024 Aw at F1.03.2023
NOTE3
RESERVE AND SURPLUS
Seeurtty Fremlum
Opening Balance U245 9265
Add: fhara fn Assoclate’s Secarity Premium - 92,65 - 9265
Capital Reserve
Opening Balance AL
Adcl: Share in Asaociate'’s Capilal Reservo 79,05
Lews; Tranfer o General Roserva during the yoar * 2,389.17 e 240630
* O sade /dizposel of nvestment. Befer Note Mo, 18
Ceneral Reserve
Opening Balance 757 787
Adclion duzing the year * . 54.04 6ley - 75
*{n sale/disposal of ivwvestment, Refer Note No. 18
Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 18,150.73 W40
Add: Transter of Share in Assoclate’s Capital - 10,550.7% 16452
Redemption Reserve — . 10,150.73
Poreign Cutrency Transiation Resarve
Cpening, Balance 16245} 55134
Acdd: Share in Assaciales FCTR STLM 2,195.77 107315 L6253
HBI Baserve
Opetibiy: Bulane 3005 84 217296
Aclel: Dhuring the year 920% { Refor Note Mo 21(b)) 129159 747
Ade: Transfer of shere in Arsociates RBI Reserve . 4,327.43 57541 5,005 84
Surmplus/{(Deficit) in Uie Prufit and Loss Statemont ($) e e 0260. 56 65,683 78
Tiral 143,283.92 53,061 .00
% Dedails of Sueplug/(Deficit) in the Peofit and Loss Statement
Cipening Balance 65,4687.38 44 974.x1
Al Frofit / (Loas) for the year 29,680.79 21,766 57
a5 Anprapviation
‘Dividerad paid (On 1% Cumulative Redeemalie Prof. Shares of T 100 each} {749 {70.00)
Lows: RBI Reserve Curvent Period {275%.63) (147.47)
Tpsn; RBI Reserve earlier year { FY 2021-22 ) { Hefer Nate No 240) {955.96) -
Add: Shpre 1 Aszoloates' suplus other novenwent (2,048.53)
Lews: Transfer to share In Azsociate's Capital Redemption Resorve - {164.52)
Less: Tranafer to share in Associate's REE Renorvn (57541}

Surpus/ {Deffcit} in the Profit and {om Statement carrind to the Datance Sheat

e




HARL SHANKAR SINGIHANIA HOLDINGS I'RIVATE LIMITHI
Muotes to Consolidated Finaneisl Statemenis for the yaar endud 31 March 2024

JR— (Xist takho)
Paricnlacs As aldl.03.2024 A ab 1033008
WOTYE 4
OFHER CURRENT LIABILITIER
Statulory Linbililfes 383 7.0
Other Payables —.. 03 e

S— - | T R ...

NOTE 5
SHORT TERM FROVISIOMNS
Provision for tneome Tax(Met of Advance Ta/ TTIG of Re.282.48 Lakhe(i®. Y. Bs.100.20 T.akhs) $.52

052




HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS MUYATE LIMITED
Nutes to Consoliclater! Financal Stateminits for the year ended 31st March 200

NOTE &
PROPERTY, FLANT AND RQUIPMENT

{Tin lakhs)

Grross Mok Drpreciation/ Amortisation et Block
Diescription IstApdl [Additions} Sales | 31.0%. [1st Aprdl] During the | Salie | 3181 Mdeck | 315t March ] 215t Manch
03 i | 2023 Yoar b v oM 2023

Laptop 0.73 - 0.73 - a1l - .11 0.6 .
Grand Total 0.73 - 0.71 - LAY - iy § (X -
Trevious year - - - - - - N M u C

b



HARI SHANKAR SINGIHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Consalidated Pinanclal Stalements for the year ended 31 March 2024

NOQTE-7
Investments

Particulars

A. Investment in Equity Shares
A-1 Quoted

Assoclates (Refer Note below )
Othery

Total

A2 Unguoted

Associales (Refer Note balow )
Others
Total

B Investment in Pref. Shares

Others
Total
C  Investment in Mutual Fund
Total Investsment {A tn C)

Note:

Carrying amount of investment in Associate include (i) ¥ 98,212.16 Lakhs (Previous Year ¥
7134990 Lakbs) towards share in profits & reserves and (i) Capital Reserve (Net of

{Tin lakhs)

Ae at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
1,13,880.12 87,319.27
75.94 7iu
1,13,956.06 87,392.,71
1,542.65 1,349.06
543.35 543.35
2,086.00 1,892.41
- 7S
- 37,75
2,196.90 741,43
1,18,238.96 $0,064.30

Goodwill) of ¥32,349.26 Lakhx (Previous Year 2 38,718.30 Lakhs)




HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(% in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NOTE 8
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on Hand* 0.01 -
Balance with Bank
- On Current Account 8.43 1.62
Others -
On Dividend Accounts 012 0.13
On Fractonal Accounts - -
8.56 1.75
* Cash on hand T 459/- in absolute numbers in previous year
NOTE9
SHORT TERM LOANS AND AIYVANCES
(Unsecured , Considered Goods unless otherwise stated)
Deposit with Authorities 3.51 3.01
1.51 3.51




HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLTMNGS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statentents

Amountin ¥
NOTE16 - 3022-23
Revenue from Operations
Dividend Tncome 726,72 453.35
Profil on sale of investment 652.31 -
Profit on Redemption of Mutual funds 51.87 21.24
1,430.90 474.59
NOTE 11
Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries & Wages 4.85 3.02
Employee Welfare & Other Benefits 0.04 0.05
4.89 3.97
NOTE 12
Finance Cost
Interest Expense .79 -
0.79 B
NOTE 13
Expenses
Other Expenses
Premium on Redemption of Pref Shares 383.71 -
Auditors Remuneration
— Audit Fee (Inclusive of applicable taxes) 0.30 0.30
- Tax Andit Fee {Inclusive of applicable taxes) 0.08 .
— Fee for other services - 0.03
Seenrity Transaction Tax 1.34 -
Certification Charges 0.08
CSR Expenses - 62.86
Professional charges 3.43 0.52
Filing fees 0.08 0.05
Expenses related to sale of shares (.82 -
Misc. Expense 0.37 0.24
390.26 64.00

.
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HARI SHANKAR SINGHANLA HOLDINGS FRIVATE LIMUTED
MNotes to Consolidaled Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(¥in lakbs)

14
a}

b}

15

16

17

18

19

Capital Commitments T Nil (Previous Year T Nil)

Contingent Habilitles not provided (3s cortified by the management): T Nil (Previous Year T Nif)

Amount outstanding undey the Micro, smell and medium Emerprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMEID Act) to the extent of information available with the Cappany- "Nl (Previous year-"Nil)

(A} Belaged Party Disclosure

{l) List of Refated Party:-
a} Associate: Bengal & Asgam Company Lid.
Terrestvial Foods Limdted

b) Subsidiaty of Asspefate - |K Foouwt (Inclia) Lad.

©) Divectors:- Shil Blurat Hari Singhania; Smt, Vinita Singtania  DOr. Raghupati Singhania and Stri AKX Kinra
d} Key Management Personnel * i Divya Baghe!, Company Scerctary
* As per Cornpanies Act, 2073
- Reinuneraton paid o Company Secrefary - L 4.43 (Previpus Year ¥ 3,92 Lakhs)

ouring the year, the Company has issued 1,40,00,000 no. of Bquity Shares of Rs.10/- each on right basis to the promoters of the Company. Refer Note 2{g)

During the year, 14,00,000 1% Cunwlative Redeemable Pref, Shares of face value of Rs.100/ - cach have been redeemed. Refer Nate 2{x)

(18} Othex CGroup Companies as pe uldelines (as centified by the management)
JE. Fenner (Indiz) f4d. {including sub ies), LVP Foods Pyt 1.0d, Hidrive Developers & Industries Pvi. Tad, Twvarkesh Brergy Lid, Panchinahal

Froperties Led LK. Tyre & Industries Lid (inchuding subaidiavies) K lakehmi Coment Lid(inctuding suhsidiaries) K. Paper | inited(including
aubaidiovica), B Agrl Ceneticer Limited, Umang Dairies Limited, K Insurances Orakers Lid, Poonay Tnvestowenl (MP) Co. LI, Muy Bliseat Valjyy T,
Accurate Finman Serviess 1d, Sidhivinayak Trading and Iivestment Limited Param Shubham Vanijya bd,JK Credit & Finaoce Ltd., Bhopal Udyog
Lid.Bago Trading Lid. Saptarishi Consultancy Services Ltd. Cliniex Research Pyt Lid.(including subsidiaries),Crassbow Investments Put, Lid, Akhand
Investmerts Pvt. Lid. Rouncy Tradieg Pet. Lid, Global Strategic Technologies Lid., Deepli Blectronics & Elocloo Oplics Pel LI RES Securities Py,
Ll Vindta Stock Holding Pvt, Lid. 155 Stock Holding Pyt Lid., Tamel Comercial Py, Ltd, Radical Agro Pl Lid, Niyojit Properties Pvt. Ltd, Rockwoaod
Praparties Pvi. Lid.,Ouakwoud Properties & Farms Pyr, Lid, Dlanlakshini Butiding Development Pve. Lid, Divys Shree Campany (F) Lid., Terrostrinl
Fuwde Lisnibend { irndusdivg subsidivrivs), Jugpilel Kawbaput Ladedunipes, Yasbodhan Buterprives.

Earnings per Share (EFS):

20123-24 A
Net Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (T lakhs) 243,680.76 21,766.5
Less: Preference Dividend (¥ in lakhs) (57.49) (0.00%
Amount ateributable to Equity Sharehalders {7 in lakhs} 29,623.30 21,696.57
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period {Nominal value of 710 1,28,18,19% 10,000
each) (Nos.)
236,64 2,16,965.70

Basic / Diluted Eamnings per share (T)

Dyring the earlier years, the investments wag received from the Esixte of Shri Hari Shankar Singhanja as per his WILL and had recorded
invastments (i) quoted (investment) # market value and () nnquoted at book value and to that exbemt Capital Reserve was created.  As and when
the shares sold, the capital reserve been reduced by the hook value of share and General Reserve beon increase and the difference betweon sale value
and book value will be shown as profit in stalement of Profit & Loss,

(§) The Company has paid an interin/ fnal equity dividend of ¥ Nil per share (Previous Year $ Nil)
(i} The Company has paid prefereace dividend of ¥ 57.49 Lakhs (previous yeuar ¥ 70 Lakhs)




HARI SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLUING,

Nofes to Consolidated Firancinl Staternents fi

14
%)

b)

15

17

18

14

26

RV ATE LIMITED
he year ended 31 March 2024
{Tin takis)

Capital Comnmitments ¥ Nil {Previous Year T Nil)

Contingent Kabilities not provided (as certified by the managerment): ¢ Nil (Previous Year € Nil)

Amount outstanding under the Micra, small and medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
{MSMED Act) ta the extent of information available with the Company- “Nil (Previous year-"Nil)

(A} Related Yarty Discloguce

{1) List of Related Party:-
) Associate:- Bengal & Assarn Company Led.
Terresirial Fonds Timited

b Subsidiary of Asspciate - JK Fenner (India) L.

<) Thivectors:- Shri Bharat Harl Singhania; Sme. Vinita Singhania , Dr, Raghupati Singhania and Shei AK Kinea
d) Key Management Personnel * - Divya Baghel, Company Secretary
* Aw por Compandes Act, 2017
- Remuneration paid to Company Socretary - T 4,85 (Provious Year ¥ 3.97 Lakhg)

Durityg the yeus, the Company hag issuad 1,40,00,000 no. of Equity Shares of Rs.30/- each on right basis to the promaters of the Company. Refer Note 2(g)

Duraig, the year, 34,00,000 1% Cumalative Redeemable Pref. Shares of face value of Rs. 100/ - sach have bean redeemed. Refer Note 2{a)

(B) Qther Group Companics as per RBI Guidelines {as certifisd by the management)
JK Penner {India) Lid. {including subsidiartes), LVP Foods Pvt Ltd Hidrive Developers & Industries Pyt Lid, Dwarkesh Energy Lid. Panchmahal

Properties 1AdJK. Tyre & Indusiries Lid, (including subsidiaries)K.Lakshod Cement Ltd {including subsidiarics),JK.Paper Limited{including
subsidiaries), JK Agri Genwlices Limited, Umang Dairies Limited, JK Inaurances Brokers Ltd, Pranav luvestiment (MP) Co. Ltd, Nav Bharat Vanijys Ltd.,
Accurate Finman Services Lid,Sidhivinoyak Teading and Investment Limited,Param Shubham Vandya Lid, JK Credit & Finance Ltd, Bhopal Udyog
Lkl Sago Trading Ltd. Saptarishi Consultancy Services Lad, Clinies Resvareh Pet Ltd. (ineluding subsidiaries), Crossbow Investments Pet. Lid, Akhand
Investimente Pet. Lid, Rourcy Trading Fvt Ltd, Global Strategic Technologics Lid, Decpti Electrondes & Electro Optics Pyt LELRPS Secarides Pyl
Lid, Vinita Stock Holding Pet, 14d, HSS Stock Holding Pyt Lid., Tanvi Commercial Pyt Lid, Radical Agro Py, Ltd, Niyojit Properties Pet, Ltd, Rockwoand
Properties Pvt Lid, Oakwood Propertics & Farms Pyt Lid., Dhanlakshni Building Development Put. Lid, Divya Shrec Company (P) Lid, Terresirial
Foods Limited (including subsidiaries), Juggilal Kamlapat Lakshmipat, Yaghodhan Bnterprises,

Euenings por Share (EPS):

2023-24 2022-23
MNut Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (2 lakhs) 26809 21,766.57
Less: Preference Dividend (2 in lakhs) {5749 {70.00;
Amecunt altribotable to Equity Shavehalders (¥ in Jakhs) 29,623.0 21,696.57
Weighled average number of cquity shares oubstanding during Hwe period (Norminal vale of ¢ 10 1,25,18,197 10,000
each) (MWos.)
Basic / Diluted Barnings par share (1) 236,54 2,16,903.70

During the earlier years, the investmonts was recelved from the Eskate of Shei Hard Shankar Singhania as per his WILEL and had recorded
Invesiments (i) quoted (investment) at macket value and () wnguoted sl baok value and 1o thal extent Capilal Reserve wag created. As and when
the shares sold, the capital reserve been reduced by the book value of share and CGeneral Reserve been increage and the diffevence between sale value
and book value will be shown as profit in statement of Profit & Losa.

(i) The Company has padd an interiin/ final equity dividend of ¥ Nil per share (Previous Year ¥ Nil)
{1i) The Cormpany has paid preferonce dividend of ¥ 57.49 Lakhe (previous year T 70 Lakhs)
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- HARE SHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS I'IVATE LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{¥in lakhs)
20 Consolidate Met Assets and Shate in Consolidaled Profit & Loss: ‘ o
Net Assets (Le‘lm%i aggefr minus fofal Share in Profit or loss
q, Liabilities)
No Name of the entity As % of Amwunt (2 in lakha) As Y of Atnount {7 In lakhs)
Consulidated {nnsolidated
Nt assuts " Profil or Loss
A |Pavent
Haxl Shankar Singhania Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 16.54% 20,032.7% 293%F 751.97
Toial - 16.94% 20,032.76 253% B
B |Associates (Invesiment as per Equity Method)
i {Rengal & Assam Company 1.td, 82.94% 98,069.61 BG.R2% 28,7353
ii [Terrestrial Foods Limited 0.12% 142.55 0.65% 193 44
{Farmerly Terrestrial Fande Private Lirnited)
I Total C 83.06% 98,212,16 9747 28,973.82
'l"nlg!"(’_f}’ FrE+CH 100.00%, 118,244,592 100 29,6680.79

21 (a). The Company being a Care Investment Company is mainly dependent an the invesiee copanies’ opertions. The company has sufficient
liquidity o meet its obligations and is continuously monitoring any material change in economic conditions,

{b). The Company vide letter dated 24th January, 2124 to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), has comnwmnicated that against the shortfal of Rs.1,139.94
Lacs in Iransfer of the amount to statutory reserves as per provisions of Section45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 ("RBI Act") for the
Enancial year 2021-22, the Company has transferred Rs.183.9% lacs to RBI Rewerve Fund (part of Reserve and Sueplus) out of the profit of the
Company for the yoar 2072-23. The balance shortfall of Rs.955.96 Lacs (differcnce botwoen Rs.1139.94 Lacs and Ra.183.95 Lacs} of year A121-22 as per
provisions of rection 45-1C of the RBI Act as stated above, alongwith Rs.275.69 {acs of curcent financial year is transfered to the BRI Reserve Fund,
during current yeur,

22 () IK Tyre & Industries Ltd. (K Tyre), subsidiary of the Assoclate company {Hengal & Assam Company Limited or BACL), consequent to allobment
of equity shares to eligible qualified institutional buyer undet an QIF, ceased to be a subgidiary of the Assaciate company w.ef 2%.12.2023 and
became an 'Assoclale’ of Associate company. The financisl statemnent of BACL has been drawn up piving offect to s and acrordingly bean

considered by the company.

{b) The Scheme of Arrangement ('the Scheme’) amongst Umang Lairies Limited  UDL), 8 Subsidiary Company of Assodate Company, Panchmalhal
Properties Limdted {PTL), a Wholly-owned Subsidiary Company of Associate Company and Hengal & Assam Companty Limited(BACL) for {a)
Demerger of dairy business of UDL with and inte PPL and (b) Amalgamation of oovidual business of UDL mto and with the Company, w.ef.
01.04.202% (Appointad Date} las been filed with Natiotal company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata and Alinhabad Bench, after receipt of No
Clbjection from the Stock Exchangea. Pending approval, no impact of the Sclieme has been given in the financial statements of BACL.

23 (dher Information

{i) The Campany does not have any benami property, and 1o proceeding has been initiated against the Compay for holding any benami property.
(i} The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(iii} The Company has net lraded or invested in cryplo currency or virtual carrency during the financial year,

{iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) lo any other person(s)
or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Internediaries) with the undarstanding that the Intermediary  sball:
- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on belalf of the company (ultimate
beneficiaries) ox
- Provide any Guarentes, Security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiarios.
(v} The Company g twt recvived any fund (which are matetial either individually or in the aggregate) from any Person(s) or Rotity (ies), inclucling
Foreign Entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whethar secorded in writing or othorwise) that the Group shall

- Directly ar indirecily land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
(ultlmmiate beneficiaries) or
« Provide any Guarantee, Securily, or the Tike on belalf of the ultdimate beneficiaries.

{vi) The Company hns not any such tramsaction which is not recorded in the Books of Accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments ander dw Income Tix Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relavant provisions of the Income Tax

Act, 1961,
{vif) Company has nol been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or fisancial instilution or government or any goversment authority.

',
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HARLBHANKAR SINGHANIA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes tn Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 024
{¥in lakhs}
4 Previous year figisres have been reclassified/ re-casted suitably wherever considire CCESSATY. 4
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